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OPG Power Ventures Plc
("OPG", the "Group" or the "Company")

 
Final Results for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

 
O PG (AIM: O PG), the developer and operator of power genera$on assets in India, is pleased to
announce its final results for the year ended 31 March 2025 ("FY25").
 
FY25 Summary:
 
·    FY25 revenues of £156.7m (FY24: £160.8m).
·    In FY25, O PG generated cash from opera$ons of £22.3m (FY24: £20.8m). At year end, O PG had a net

cash position of £15.6m (FY24: £3.6m).
·    Adjusted EBITDA* was £13.8m in FY25 (FY24: £17.2m).
·    Profit before tax was £5.2m in FY25 (FY24: £7.7m).
 
Unless specified, all figures in £m
 FY 25 FY 24
Revenue 156.7 160.8
Other Operating Income 3.7 3.6
Adjusted EBITDA* 13.8 17.2
Earnings per share (pence) 0.35 1.02
NAV per share (pence) 41.1 42.3
Total generation (including deemed) (billion kWh) 2.32 2.32
*defined as Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortization and Share Based Payments
 
Investigation
O n 15 November 2024, the Company announced that i t was  subject to an inves$ga$on into al leged regulatory non-
compl iances  by the Group under the Foreign Exchange Management Act ("F EM A"). F EM A regulates , consol idates  and
amends the law rela$ng to foreign exchange, with the purpose of faci l i ta$ng external  trade and payments  and promo$ng
the orderly development and maintenance of the foreign exchange market in I ndia, including foreign direct investment into
India and overseas  investment by Indian companies .
 
The Group cons iders  that i t has  undertaken al l  materia l  transac$ons, fol lowing profess ional  advice on compl iances  with
F EM A and is  confident that i t has  been compl iant. The Group offered ful l  co-opera$on to the inves$ga$on. The Group's
plants  con$nue to operate as  usual  and the Group does  not an$cipate any materia l  impact of the inves$ga$on process  on
the Group.
 
The Group cons iders  that i t has  a  robust track record of corporate governance and compl iance and has  ful l  fa i th and
confidence in the regulatory system of India.
 
Mr. N. Kumar, Non-Execu0ve Chairman said: "FY25 marked another year of steady opera$onal
delivery. Our 414 MW thermal plant in Tamil Nadu maintained industry level PLFs, ensuring consistent
power supply during periods of elevated demand. This strong performance reflects the discipline of our
teams, robustness of our asset base, and effec$veness in managing opera$ons across varying market
conditions."
 
"We remain commiFed to providing transparent governance, stakeholder value and long-term strategic clari ty. O ur
priori$es  are maintenance of strong cash flows, repayment of debt, asset rel iabi l i ty and cal ibrated investment in
op$misa$on ini$a$ves. As  the I ndian power sector con$nues to evolve, thermal  power is  l ikely to remain indispensable
for supporting peak demand, grid stabi l i ty and round-the-clock energy access ."
 
For further information, please visit www.opgpower.com or contact:
 

OPG Power Ventures PLC
Via Tavistock below

A P Singh
 
Cavendish Capital Markets Limited
(Nominated Adviser & Broker) +44 (0) 20 7220 0500
Stephen Keys/Katy Birkin/George Lawson

Tavistock (Financial PR) +44 (0) 20 7920 3150
Simon Hudson / Nick Elwes

 



 
The informa�on contained within this announcement is deemed by the Company to cons�tute inside informa�on as s�pulated
under the UK  version of the EU Market A buse Regula�on (2014/596) which is part of UK  law by virtue of the European Union
(Withdrawal) Act 2018, as amended and supplemented from time to time.
 
 
Chairman's Statement
 
India remains the world's fastest-growing major economy and its energy sector con0nues to be a cri0cal enabler of that
growth.
 
India's Growth Story and the Role of Power
I ndia 's  economic engine is  accelera$ng at a  scale and speed that i s  redrawing the global  growth landscape. F Y25 saw GD P
expand by a  robust ~6.5% (Source: I M F), powered by an unprecedented manufacturing boom, na$onwide infrastructure
bui ld-out, rapid urban transforma$on, and deep penetra$on of technology across  sectors . Government-led ini$a$ves  such
as  P roduc$on Linked I ncen$ve (P LI ) schemes and the push towards  electrifica�on of everything, from industry to mobi l i ty,
are driving a  structural  surge in power demand. As  industria l  clusters , data centres , transporta$on networks  and rural
development programmes expand, the need for rel iable, scalable and round-the-clock electrici ty has  never been more
cri$cal . Pos i$oned at the centre of this  transforma$on is  the energy sector - thermal  based genera$on in par$cular - that
remains  pivotal  in powering India 's  journey towards  economic leadership.
 
I ndia 's  power sector con$nued i ts  upward trajectory in F Y25, with total  electrici ty genera$on reaching 1,821 bi l l ion units
(BU), a  5% year-on-year increase over F Y24's  1,733 BU. As  of March 2025, I ndia 's  total  instal led power capacity stands  at
approximately 475 GW , with 245 GW  from thermal  power. More importantly, thermal  con$nues to dominate the genera$on
mix with over 74% share, owing to i ts  unmatched role in del ivering base-load power and ensuring grid stabi l i ty, as  P lant
Load Factors  (PLF) across  these thermal  assets  tend to be more than double of renewable plants . Recognizing the importance
and need of such base load energy, the Government of India (GO I) is aiming to add 80 GW  of new thermal capacity by 2032.
Against this  backdrop, O P G Power Ventures  remains  a  vi ta l  contributor to I ndia 's  energy story, offering cons istency,
rel iabi l i ty and operational  res i l ience.
 
Operational Strength and Consistency
F Y25 marked another year of steady opera$onal  del ivery. O ur 414 M W  thermal  plant in Tami l  Nadu maintained industry
level  P LFs , ensuring cons istent power supply during periods  of elevated demand. This  strong performance reflects  the
discipl ine of our teams, robustness  of our asset base, and effec$veness  in managing opera$ons across  varying market
conditions.
 
Financial Performance and Prudent Fiscal Management
The financial  year saw OPG post a  revenue of 156.73 GBP Mn and an EBITDA of 13.83 GBP Mn, reflecting continued focus  on
opera$onal  efficiency and cost control . The balance sheet remains  healthy, backed by discipl ined capital  a l loca$on and
efficient working capital  management. P rudent cash flow strategies  have enabled us  to meet our debt obl iga$ons
comfortably whi le maintaining sufficient l iquidity.
 
Governance, Strategy and Outlook
We remain commiFed to providing transparent governance, stakeholder value and long-term strategic clari ty. O ur
priori$es  are maintenance of strong cash flows, repayment of debt, asset rel iabi l i ty and cal ibrated investment in
op$misa$on ini$a$ves. As  the I ndian power sector con$nues to evolve, we firmly bel ieve thermal  power wi l l  remain
indispensable, in the near future, for supporting peak demand coverage and round-the-clock energy access .
 
I n clos ing, I  wish to thank al l  my col leagues  on the board, employees, regulators , partners  and shareholders  for their trust
and con$nued bel ief in O P G. Your support strengthens our resolve to del iver cons istent value through orderly execu$on.
We move ahead with clari ty, confidence and purpose.
 
N. Kumar
Non-Executive Chairman
01 September 2025
 
 
CEO's Operational Review
 
The Group remains steadfast in pursuing resilient and value-accre0ve growth, in alignment with India's energy vision to
propel development
 
Macroeconomic and Industry Overview
F Y25 was a  defining year for the I ndian power sector, supported by strong economic growth and con$nued pol icy support.
I ndia being the world's  fastest-growing major economy has  seen robust electrici ty demand driven by industria l  expansion,
urbanisation and ris ing per capita consumption. Growth in Power demand surpassed earl ier forecasts , peaking at over 250
GW  during the summer months. Thermal  power genera$on maintained i ts  dominance in the energy mix, contribu$ng over
74% of total  electrici ty generated during the year. This  reaffirmed the importance of coal -based power in ensuring energy
securi ty and round-the-clock avai labi l i ty of electrici ty.
 
O n the coal  front, domes$c produc$on hit a  new record of over 1 bi l l ion tonnes, a  mi lestone achievement that reduced
import dependency and improved fuel  securi ty. GO I 's  ini$a$ves  such as  the S H AK TI  Scheme ensured improved avai labi l i ty
of coal . The current pol icy landscape is  focused on ramping up domes$c output whi le gradual ly reducing import rel iance,
which in turn has  contributed to a  soQening of interna$onal  coal  prices . The Ministry of Power of GO I , has  played a key
role in this  trans i$on, proac$vely faci l i ta$ng long-term P PAs and refining coal  a l loca$on mechanisms to ensure
consistent fuel  supply for power generators .
 
Operational Performance
The Company con$nued to supply electrici ty to various  state distribu$on companies  across  I ndia, under a  wel l -divers ified
porRol io of short, medium and long-term contracts . This  structured sales  mix has  helped anchor opera$onal  flexibi l i ty in
response to the evolving market dynamics .
 
O P G del ivered a steady opera$onal  performance in F Y25, with electrici ty genera$on of 2.324 BU, closely tracking F Y24
levels  (2.323 BU). The plant sustained a P LF of 69%, underscoring opera$onal  cons istency. Power was generated through a
balanced mix of domes$c and imported coal , ensuring rel iabi l i ty and cost compe$$veness . The average real ized tariff for
the year stood at 6.5 pence per unit, compared to 7.5 pence in the previous  year, largely reflec$ng market dynamics  and
balanced sales  mix. Despite the tariff decl ine, profitabi l i ty remained stable owing to effec$ve coal  procurement strategies
and softened input costs .
 
Sustaining Performance
Auxi l iary consump$on was maintained at 8.5%, in l ine with sectoral  benchmarks. An in-house solar plant commiss ioned
within the premises  suppl ied power for internal  opera$ons, improving net plant efficiency, reducing carbon footprint and
saving auxi l iary consump$on annual ly. The faci l i ty has  implemented mul$ple ini$a$ves  to further reduce emiss ions  per
electrici ty generated, reinforcing i ts  commitment to cleaner opera$ons. Further, Biomass  blending con$nues to support
cleaner combustion practices .
 
Water usage was minimised through the use of a i r-cooled condensers , pos i$oning the faci l i ty as  a  zero-discharge unit.
These measures  contribute to operational  sustainabi l i ty without compromis ing generation rel iabi l i ty.
 
Safety and Compliance
F Y25 marked another year of excel lent safety performance, with zero Total  Recordable I ncident Rate (TR I R). The company
strengthened i ts  on-ground safety systems, conducted periodic dri l l s , and maintained a proac$ve health and safety
framework, reinforcing a  culture of accountabi l i ty and care.
 
Avantika Gupta
Chief Executive Officer
01 September 2025
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Financial Review
 
I n F Y25, the Group navigated market cycl ical i ty with financial  discipl ine, sustaining stabi l i ty and long-term value with
focus  of deleveraging the balance sheet and strengthening the financial  pos ition.
 
The fol lowing is  a  commentary on the Group's  financial  performance for the year ending 31 March 2025.
 
Revenue
I n F Y25, the Group del ivered revenue of £156.7 mi l l ion, reflec$ng a modera$on of £4.1 mi l l ion (2.5%) from F Y24. The shiQ
is  largely aFributable to market cycl ical i ty against an excep$onal  prior-year base, whi le the Group's  opera$ng
fundamentals  remain strong.
 
Adjusted EB I TDA was £13.8 mi l l ion, represen$ng 8.8% of revenue, compared with £17.2 mi l l ion (10.7%) in F Y24. The
variance reflects  revenue movement, though profitabi l i ty con$nues to be supported by discipl ined opera$ons and ensuring
sustainable performance.
 

Year Ended 31 March FY 25 £m
Percentage
of revenue FY 24 £m

Percentage
of revenue

Revenue £156.7 £160.8
Cost of Revenue (excluding
Depreciation) (£132.5) (£132.8)
Gross Profit £24.2 15.4 £28.0 17.4
Other Operating Income £3.7 £3.6
Other Income £4.0 £0.2
Distribution (£18.0) (£14.6)
General  and Administrative Expenses
Adjusted EBITDA £13.8 8.8 £17.2 10.7
Depreciation (£5.7) (£5.5)
Net Finance Costs (£2.9) (£3.9)
Income Before Tax £5.2 3.3 £7.7 4.8
Reversal of Impairment
provision and Share of Profits
from Associates £0.0 £0.0
Profi t Before Tax £5.2 3.3 £7.7 4.8
Taxes (£3.8) (£3.4)
Profit for the Year £1.4 0.9 £4.3 2.7
Note: due to rounding, numbers  presented throughout this  document may not add up precisely to the totals  provided and
percentages  may not precisely reflect the absolute figures .
 
I n F Y 25, the average tariff real ised was 6.5p/kW h, compared to previous  year's  7.5p/kW h.  The total  genera$on (including
deemed genera$on), amounted to 2,324 mi l l ion units , represen$ng s imi lar levels  as  compared to the previous  year's  2,323
mil l ion units . W hi le genera$on levels  in F Y25 closely tracked those of the previous  year, the Company maintained i ts  focus
on the short-term market, responding to evolving demand trends  and ensuring steady plant uti l i sation.
 
Coal  prices  moderated to norma$ve levels  during the year, suppor$ng opera$ng margins . However, global  supply
dynamics  remain sens i$ve to shiQs  in China and I ndia 's  coal  demand, I ndonesian export pol icies , and weather-related
disruptions, factors  that continue to influence international  pricing and avai labi l i ty

Operational Review FY 25 FY 24
Total  generation, incl . "deemed" generation (m units) 2,324 2,323
Plant Load Factor (PLF) (percent) 68.50 69.21
Average tari ff (pence/unit) 6.5 7.5
 
Gross Profit
For F Y25, Gross  P rofit (GP ) stood at £24.2 mi l l ion, represen$ng 15.4% of revenue, compared with £28.0 mi l l ion (17.4%) in
F Y24. The year-on-year movement reflects  a  normal isa$on in opera$ng margins  fol lowing the excep$onal  benefits  seen in
the previous  year from stabi l i sed coal  prices  and stronger generation levels .
 
W hi le the reported GP  is  lower in absolute terms, the outcome is  cons istent with expecta$ons in a  year marked by
fluctua$ng input costs  and evolving market dynamics . I mportantly, the Group maintained discipl ined cost management
and ensured operational  efficiency, thereby sustaining a  res i l ient margin profi le in l ine with industry trends.
 
The Group remains  focused on op$mis ing i ts  cost base and enhancing efficiency to safeguard profitabi l i ty, whi le
continuing to priori tise stable cash flows and long-term shareholder value creation.
 
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted Earnings  before I nterest, Deprecia$on, Taxes  and Amor$sa$on ("Adjusted EB I TDA") i s  a  key indicator of the
Group's  underlying cash genera$on, as  i t excludes  the effects  of financing, deprecia$on, excep$onal  charges, and other
non-opera$onal  i tems such as  share-based compensa$on. This  measure enables  a  clearer comparison of profitabi l i ty
across  periods  and with peers , by focus ing on core opera$ng performance and removing distor$ons from capital  s tructure
and accounting treatments .
 
F igures  pertaining to F Y 24 have been reinstated to reflect reclass ifica$on adjustments  carried out during F Y 25, ensuring
consistency and comparabi l i ty across  reporting periods.
 
I n F Y 25, Adjusted EB I TDA stood at £13.8 mi l l ion, represen$ng 8.8% of revenue, compared to £17.2 mi l l ion or 10.7% of
revenue in F Y 24. The movement reflects  a  recal ibra$on from the excep$onal ly strong opera$ng environment of F Y 24, as
wel l  as  the impact of higher input costs  during the year. I mportantly, despite this  modera$on, the Group con$nued to
generate strong operating cash flows, underscoring the res i l ience of i ts  bus iness  model .
 
Profit Before Tax
P rofit from opera$ons before tax was  £5.2 mi l l ion, or 3.3% of revenue, in F Y 25, rela$ve to £7.7 mi l l ion (4.8% of revenue) in
F Y 24. The variance primari ly stems from margin compress ion fol lowing a high base year; however, the Group remains
focused on opera$onal  discipl ine and efficiency improvements . These ini$a$ves  are expected to enhance long-term
profi tabi l i ty and reinforce the platform for sustained shareholder value creation.
 
Profit Before Tax (PBT) reconciliation for FY 25 (£m)



Profit Before Tax (PBT) reconciliation for FY 25 (£m)
 
PBT £m FY 25
PBT FY 25 £5.2
PBT FY 24 £7.7
Decrease in PBT (£2.5)
Decrease in GP £(3.8)
Increase in Other Operating Income £0.1
Increase in Other income £3.8
I ncrease in Distribu$on, General  & Administra$ve Expenses, Expected
Credit Loss (£3.4)
Decrease in Net Finance Costs £1.0
Decrease in Depreciation and Amortisation (£0.2)
Decrease in PBT (£2.5)
 
Taxation
The Group's  opera$ng subs idiary con$nues to benefit from a tax hol iday period. However, the subs idiary is  subject to
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) on i ts  accounting profi ts . The taxes  paid under MAT can be used to offset future tax l iabi l i ties
that may arise after the conclus ion of the tax hol iday period.
 
The tax expense for the year amounted to £3.8 mil l ion.
 
Profit After Tax from continuing operations
P rofit AQer Tax from con$nuing opera$ons stood at £1.4 mi l l ion in F Y25, compared to £4.3 mi l l ion in F Y24, reflec$ng a
reduc$on of £2.9 mi l l ion (66.2%). The decl ine primari ly mirrors  the flow-through impact of lower opera$ng earnings  in the
year, a longs ide prudent provis ioning and conserva$ve recogni$on pol icies  that the Company has  maintained in l ine with
its  discipl ined financial  approach.
 
W hi le PAT is  lower year-on-year, the underlying fundamentals  of the bus iness  remain intact. The Company con$nues to
generate steady opera$ng cash flows and retains  financial  flexibi l i ty to support growth ini$a$ves. Management remains
focused on driving operational  efficiency and portfol io optimization, which are expected to underpin sustainable long-term
profi tabi l i ty.
 
Current Year's Operations:
The plants  are running wel l  with a  P lant Load Factor of 69%. The plants  have con$nued to operate steadi ly, supported by
rel iable oTake arrangements  across  both long-term and short-term markets . Market dynamics  have shown s igns  of
stabi l i za$on despite fluctua$ons in exchange rates  and seasonal  supply varia$ons. The Company remains  focused on
enhancing opera$onal  res i l ience by op$mizing fuel  sourcing strategies , including pursuing opportuni$es  under
government-led coal  ini$a$ves, whi le maintaining flexibi l i ty to adapt to evolving market condi$ons. These measures  are
aimed at ensuring cost efficiency and supporting cons istent generation performance.
 
Earnings per Share (EPS)
The Group's  total  reported EPS decreased from 1.02 Pence in FY 24 to 0.35 Pence in FY 25.
 
Dividend policy
The Board remains  firmly commiFed to prudent capital  management, priori$s ing l iquidity to support opera$onal  needs,
future capex requirements , and to withstand against evolving macroeconomic uncertain$es. I n l ine with this  approach, the
Board has  decided not to declare a  dividend for F Y25. The Group's  dividend pol icy wi l l  be reviewed periodical ly, keeping in
view bus iness  performance, cash flows, and strategic priori ties .
 
The Foreign Exchange Gain / Loss on Translation
The Bri$sh Pound to I ndian Rupee appreciated to a  clos ing rate of £1= I NR 110.38 as  at 31 March 2025 from a rate of £1=
I NR 105.28 as  at 31 March 2024 resul$ng in an exchange loss  of £7.03 mi l l ion. The same has  been recognised under
"Exchange di fferences  on trans lating foreign operations".
 
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets
The net book value of P roperty, P lant and Equipment and I ntangible Assets  stood at £148.2 mi l l ion, reflec$ng the impact of
depreciation, asset disposals  and foreign exchange movements , partia l ly offset by additions  during the year.
 
Other Non-Current Assets
O ther Non-Current Assets  (excluding P roperty, P lant and Equipment & I ntangible Assets) decl ined by £4.5 mi l l ion in F Y25.
The reduc$on was primari ly driven by a  £4.3 mi l l ion decrease in non-current investments , which moved from £18.3 mi l l ion
to £14.0 mi l l ion during the year.
 
Current Assets
Current Assets  decl ined by £29.5 mi l l ion (31.2%) year-on-year, reflec$ng adjustments  across  working capital  balances. The
most notable changes  were:
 
·   Inventories  contracted by £13.3 mi l l ion, driven by lower stock holdings  in l ine with operational  requirements .
·   Trade receivables  reduced by £16.1 mi l l ion, reflecting tighter col lections.
·   Other short-term assets  advanced modestly by £1.8 mi l l ion, providing partia l  offset.
·   Current tax assets  edged lower by £0.04 mi l l ion.
·   Restricted cash balances  decreased by £5.5 mi l l ion, fol lowing scheduled uti l i sation
·   Cash and cash equivalents  improved by £3.6 mi l l ion, strengthening l iquidity.
 
Liabilities
Total  l iabi l i$es  witnessed a sharp reduc$on, with current l iabi l i$es  decl ining by £27.1 mi l l ion (44.2%). This  movement
was primari ly driven by:
 
·   Borrowings, including current maturi$es  of long-term debt, which reduced by £6.9 mi l l ion, reflec$ng repayments  during

the year.
·   Trade and other payables , which contracted s igni ficantly by £20.1 mi l l ion, in l ine with operating requirements .
·   Other current l iabi l i ties , which saw a marginal  decl ine of £0.01 mi l l ion.
 
On the non-current s ide, l iabi l i ties  decreased by £10.7 mi l l ion (26.1%), largely attributable to:
 
·   A fal l  in the non-current portion of long-term debt by £11.3 mi l l ion, reflecting repayments .



·   A fal l  in the non-current portion of long-term debt by £11.3 mi l l ion, reflecting repayments .
·   Trade and other payables , which decreased by £0.4 mi l l ion.
 
Par$al ly offseVng these reduc$ons, net deferred tax l iabi l i$es  rose by £1.0 mi l l ion, reflec$ng $ming differences  between
book and tax treatments .
 
Capital Structure and Financial Leverage Analysis
 
Debt Profile and Leverage Metrics
The Company's  borrowings  porRol io witnessed a s ignificant deleveraging during F Y25, with total  outstanding debt
decl ining substan$al ly to £10.5 mi l l ion from the previous  year's  £28.6 mi l l ion. The gearing ra$o, calculated as  net debt
divided by equity plus  net debt, improved markedly to -0.09x from -0.02x, reflec$ng the organiza$on's  strengthened
balance sheet pos ition. Notably, the Company abstained from rais ing any new debt faci l i ties  during the financial  year.
 
Liquidity Position
The net cash pos i$on (total  borrowings  minus  cash and current and non-current investments  in mutual  funds) experienced
a remarkable enhancement, strengthening from £3.6 mi l l ion to £15.6 mi l l ion, primari ly aFributable to systema$c debt
reduc$on amoun$ng to £18.1 mi l l ion. This  strategic debt re$rement underscores  management's  commitment to op$mizing
the capital  s tructure. The Net Debt to EB I TDA ra$o further improved from -0.2x to -1.1x, demonstra$ng enhanced earnings
coverage relative to the Company's  net cash pos ition and reinforcing i ts  robust financial  flexibi l i ty.
 
Finance Costs and Income
Financial  expenses  registered a marginal  up$ck of £0.5 mi l l ion year-over-year, whi le finance income demonstrated robust
growth of £1.5 mi l l ion. Consequently, net finance costs  contracted from £3.9 mi l l ion in F Y24 to £2.9 mi l l ion in F Y25,
representing an improvement of £1.0 mi l l ion.
 
Restricted Cash Holdings (Pledged as Security for Funding Purposes)
Current restricted cash reserves  decreased to £2.7 mi l l ion from £8.3 mi l l ion (66.8% reduction), whi le non-current restricted
cash holdings  decl ined to £1.5 mi l l ion from £1.9 mi l l ion (21.4% reduc$on). These movements  reflect the Company's
enhanced operational  cash flow management and reduced col lateral  requirements .
 
Cash flow
Cash flow from opera$ons; before, and aQer, the changes  in working capital  was  £13.0 mi l l ion (F Y 24: £17.1 mi l l ion) and
£22.3 mi l l ion (FY 24: £20.8 mi l l ion) respectively.
 
Movements (£m) FY 25 FY 24
Operating cash flows from operations before changes in working
capital £13.0 £17.1
Tax Paid (£0.8) (£0.5)
Change in working capital  assets  and l iabi l i ties £10.1 £4.2
Net Cash generated by operating activities from operations £22.3 £20.8
Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment (net of disposals ) (£3.6) (£3.6)
Investments(purchased)/sold, incl . in solar projects , shipping JV,
market securi ties , movement in restricted cash and interest
received £12.7 £3.3
Net Cash from / (used in) investing activities £9.2 (£0.2)
Finance cost paid, incl . foreign exchange losses (£6.1) (£5.6)
Dividend paid - -
Total cash change from operations before net borrowings £25.4 £15.0
 
Ajit Pratap Singh
Non-Executive Director
01 September 2025

Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 March 2025

(Al l  a mount i n £, unl e s s  othe rwi s e  s ta te d)

 As at As at

 Notes 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Assets

Non-current Assets

Inta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 13 37,664 17,010

Prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt 14 148,169,618 157,565,290

Inve s tme nts 15 14,005,609 18,307,543

Othe r l ong-te rm a s s e ts 16(b) 658,306 512,358

Re s tri cte d ca s h 20(b) 1,463,539 1,862,075

Total Non-current Assets  164,334,736 178,264,276

  

Current assets

Inve ntori e s 18 5,398,008 18,736,699

Tra de  a nd othe r re ce i va bl e s 17 21,006,192 37,086,020

Othe r s hort-te rm a s s e ts 16(a ) 19,987,627 18,186,633

Curre nt ta x a s s e ts  (ne t) 25 654,736 697,438

Re s tri cte d ca s h 20(a ) 2,736,441 8,250,594



Re s tri cte d ca s h 20(a ) 2,736,441 8,250,594

Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 19 15,348,348 11,714,256

Total Current Assets  65,131,351 94,671,640

Total Assets  229,466,086 272,935,916

 

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Sha re  ca pi ta l 21 58,909 58,909

Sha re  pre mi um 131,451,482 131,451,482

Othe r compone nts  of e qui ty (27,339,325) (20,305,279)

Re ta i ne d e a rni ngs 60,680,225 59,267,745

Equity attributable to owners of the Company  164,851,291 170,472,858

Non-control l i ng i nte re s ts - 5,822

Total Equity  164,851,291 170,478,680

Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities

Borrowi ngs 23(b) 5,416,058 9,451,140

Non-Conve rti bl e  De be nture s 23(b) 2,898,997 10,163,461

Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s 24(b) 388,469 814,473

Othe r l i a bi l i ti e s 26(b) - 16,903

De fe rre d ta x l i a bi l i ti e s  (ne t) 12 21,652,104 20,657,873

Total Non-current Liabilities  30,355,628 41,103,850

    

Current Liabilities

Borrowi ngs 23(a ) 2,166,804 9,022,924

Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s 24(a ) 31,716,742 51,847,642

Othe r l i a bi l i ti e s 26(a ) 375,621 482,820

Total Current Liabilities  34,259,167 61,353,386

    

Total Liabilities  64,614,795 102,457,236

    

Total Equity and Liabilities  229,466,086 272,935,916

The  note s  a re  a n i nte gra l  pa rt of the s e  cons ol i da te d fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts .

The  fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts  we re  a uthori s e d for i s s ue  by the  boa rd of di re ctors  on 01 Se pte mbe r 2025
a nd we re  s i gne d on i ts  be ha l f by:
N Kuma r,
Non-Exe cuti ve  Cha i rma n

Aji t Pra ta p Si ngh
Non-Exe cuti ve  Di re ctor

 
 
Consolidated statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al l  a mount i n £, unl e s s  othe rwi s e  s ta te d)

 Year ended Year ended

 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Notes   

 

Re ve nue 7 156,738,456 160,794,155

Cos t of re ve nue 8 (132,535,087) (132,786,047)

Gross profit 24,203,369 28,008,108

Othe r Ope ra ti ng i ncome 9(a ) 3,673,412 3,573,242

Othe r i ncome 9(b) 3,998,765 169,536

Di s tri buti on cos t (9,511,894) (5,630,647)

Ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve  e xpe ns e s (8,534,326) (8,965,598)

Expe cte d cre di t l os s  on tra de  re ce i va bl e s - -

De pre ci a ti on a nd a morti s a ti on (5,695,201) (5,521,962)

Operating profit  8,134,124 11,632,680

Fi na nce  cos ts 10 (6,097,115) (5,571,272)

Fi na nce  i ncome 11 3,205,785 1,662,256

Sha re  of ne t profi t from a s s oci a te s - -

Re ve rs a l  of FV Impa i rme nt of a s s oci a te s  ma de  i n 21-22 - -
Profit before tax  5,242,794 7,723,664

Curre nt ta x 12 (1,418,583) (1,250,941)

Ea rl i e r Ye a r Ta x Adjus tme nts (370,467) -

De fe rre d ta x 12 (2,008,243) (2,192,952)

Ta x e xpe ns e 12 (3,797,292) (3,443,893)



Ta x e xpe ns e 12 (3,797,292) (3,443,893)

Profit for the year from continued operations  1,445,501 4,279,771

Ga i n/(Los s ) from di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons , i ncl udi ng Non-
Control l i ng Inte re s t

- -

Othe r Compre he ns i ve  Income  Re me a s ure me nt of the  de fi ne d
be ne fi t pl a ns

(33,021) (169,221)

Profit for the year  1,412,480 4,110,550

    
Profit for the year attributable to:

Owne rs  of the  Compa ny 1,412,480 4,110,535

Non - control l i ng i nte re s ts - 15

  1,412,480 4,110,550

  
Earnings per share from continued operations  

Ba s i c e a rni ngs  pe r s ha re  (i n pe nce ) 28 0.35 1.02

Di l ute d e a rni ngs  pe r s ha re  (i n pe nce ) 0.35 1.02

  

Earnings/(Loss) per share from discontinued operations  
Ba s i c e a rni ngs /(l os s ) pe r s ha re  (i n pe nce ) 28 - -

Di l ute d e a rni ngs /(l os s ) pe r s ha re  (i n pe nce ) - -

  

Earnings per share   

-Ba s i c (i n pe nce ) 28 0.35 1.02

-Di l ute d (i n pe nce ) 0.35 1.02

Other comprehensive (loss) / income   

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  

Excha nge  di ffe re nce s  on tra ns l a ti ng fore i gn ope ra ti ons (7,037,274) (4,394,473)

Income  ta x re l a ti ng to i te ms  tha t wi l l  be  re cl a s s i fi e d

Items that will be not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  

Excha nge  di ffe re nce s  on tra ns l a ti ng fore i gn ope ra ti ons , re l a ti ng
to non-control l i ng i nte re s ts

- 19,317

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income  (7,037,274) (4,375,156)

Total comprehensive income  (5,624,794) (264,606)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:  

Owne rs  of the  Compa ny (5,624,794) (283,938)

Non-control l i ng i nte re s t - 19,332

(5,624,794) (264,606)

  
The  note s  a re  a n i nte gra l  pa rt of the s e  cons ol i da te d fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts
The  Fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts  we re  a uthori s e d for i s s ue  by the  boa rd of di re ctors  on 01 Se pte mbe r 2025
a nd we re  s i gne d on i ts  be ha l f by:
N Kuma r,
Non-Exe cuti ve  Cha i rma n

Aji t Pra ta p Si ngh
Non-Exe cuti ve  Di re ctor

 
 
Consolidated statement of cash flows  
For the Year ended 31 March 2025  
(Al l  a mount i n £, unl e s s  othe rwi s e  s ta te d)

Year ended Year ended
   31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Notes   
Cash flows from operating activities  
Profit before income tax including discontinued operations and income
from associates 5,242,794 7,554,443
Adjustments for:  
(Profi t) / Los s  from di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons , ne t / Re ve rs a l  of
Impa i rme nt - -
(Profi t) / Los s  from a s s oci a te  compa ni e s - -
Unre a l i s e d fore i gn e xcha nge  (ga i n)/l os s 528,738 170,950
Provi s i ons  cre a te d duri ng the  ye a r (1,344,621) 237,872
Fi na nci a l  cos ts 10 6,097,115 5,571,272
Fi na nci a l  i ncome  (i ncl udi ng Profi t on s a l e  of
Fi na nci a l  Ins trume nts )

11 (3,205,785) (1,967,022)

De pre ci a ti on a nd a morti s a ti on 5,695,201 5,521,962

Changes in working capital  
Tra de  a nd othe r re ce i va bl e s 17,424,449 (5,409,286)
Inve ntori e s 13,338,691 (11,017,303)
Othe r a s s e ts (951,829) (3,617,653)
Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s (20,556,904) 22,840,990
Othe r l i a bi l i ti e s 870,129 1,428,458
Cash generated from continuing operations 23,137,979 21,314,681
Ta xe s  pa i d (806,463) (482,890)
Ca s h provi de d by ope ra ti ng a cti vi ti e s  of conti nui ng ope ra ti ons 22,331,516 20,831,791
Ca s h us e d for ope ra ti ng a cti vi ti e s  of di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons - -



Ca s h us e d for ope ra ti ng a cti vi ti e s  of di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons - -
Net cash provided by operating activities  22,331,516 20,831,791

Cash flows from investing activities  
Purcha s e  of prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt (i ncl udi ng ca pi ta l
a dva nce s ) (3,558,443) (3,560,859)
Proce e ds  from Di s pos a l  of prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt - 45,827
Inte re s t re ce i ve d 3,205,785 1,967,022
Move me nt i n re s tri cte d ca s h 5,383,951 4,882,171
Purcha s e  of i nve s tme nts 4,155,986 (4,767,492)
Sa l e  of Inve s tme nts - -
Re de mpti on of Inve s tme nts - 1,203,617
Cash from / (used in) investing activities of continuing operations 9,187,278 (229,714)
Ca s h from i nve s ti ng a cti vi ti e s  of di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons - -
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities  9,187,278 (229,714)

Cash flows from financing activities    
Proce e ds  from borrowi ngs  (ne t of cos ts ) - 17,355,566
Proce e ds /(Inve s tme nts ) from e qui ty - -
Re pa yme nt of borrowi ngs (18,155,666) (21,315,183)
Fi na nce  cos ts  pa i d (6,097,115) (5,571,272)
Ca s h us e d i n fi na nci ng a cti vi ti e s  of conti nui ng ope ra ti ons (24,252,781) (9,530,888)
Ca s h us e d i n fi na nci ng a cti vi ti e s  of di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons - -
Net cash used in financing activities   (24,252,781) (9,530,888)
Ne t i ncre a s e  / (de cre a s e ) i n ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  from
conti nui ng ope ra ti ons 7,266,013 11,071,189
Ne t i ncre a s e  / (de cre a s e ) i n ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  from
di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons - -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  7,266,013 11,071,189

     
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  a t the  be gi nni ng of the  ye a r 11,714,256 3,319,344
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  on de cons ol i da ti on - -
Excha nge  di ffe re nce s  on ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts (3,631,921) (2,676,277)
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  of the  di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15,348,348 11,714,256
The  note s  a re  a n i nte gra l  pa rt of the s e  cons ol i da te d fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts .
 
 
Disclosure of Changes in financing liabilities:    

Analysing of changes in Net debt 01-Apr-24 Cash flows
Forex Rate

Impact 31-Mar-25

Worki ng Ca pi ta l  l oa n 2,960,079 (2,960,079) - 0
Se cure d l oa n due  wi thi n one  ye a r 6,062,845 (3,896,041) 3,249,254 5,416,058
Borrowings grouped under Current liabilities 9,022,924 (6,856,120) 3,249,254 5,416,059

Se cure d l oa n due  a fte r one  ye a r 9,451,140 (4,128,760) 213,653 5,536,033
Borrowings grouped under Non-current
liabilities 9,451,140 (4,128,760) 213,653 5,536,033

Analysing of changes in Net debt 01-Apr-23 Cash flows
Forex Rate

Impact 31-Mar-24

Worki ng Ca pi ta l  l oa n 1,951,831 1,004,384 3,863 2,960,079
Se cure d l oa n due  wi thi n one  ye a r 23,496,705 (17,480,361) 46,501 6,062,845
Borrowings grouped under Current liabilities 25,448,536 (16,475,976) 50,364 9,022,924

Se cure d l oa n due  a fte r one  ye a r 7,030,298 2,380,444 40,398 9,451,140
Borrowings grouped under Non-current
liabilities 7,030,298 2,380,444 40,398 9,451,140
 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al l  a mount i n £, unl e s s  othe rwi s e
s ta te d)

Particulars

Issued
capital (No.

of shares)
Ordinary

shares
Share

premium

Capital
Redemption

Reserve
Other

reserves

Foreign
currency

translation
reserve

Other
Compre-
hensive
Income

Retained
earnings

Total
attributable

to owners
of parent

At 1 April 2023 400,733,511 58,909 131,451,482 - 8,216,152 (24,126,958) - 55,157,211 170,756,796
Empl oye e  Sha re  ba s e d
pa yme nt LTIP (Note  22) - - - - - - -
Transaction with owners - - - - - - - -
Ne t Addi ti ons  for the  ye a r - - - - - - - 4,110,535 4,110,535
Othe r compre he ns i ve
i ncome - - - - - (4,394,473) - - (4,394,473)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (4,394,473) - 4,110,535 (283,938)

At 31 March 2024 400,733,511 58,909 131,451,482 - 8,216,152 (28,521,431) - 59,267,745 170,472,858

At 1 April 2024 400,733,511 58,909 131,451,482 - 8,216,152 (28,521,431) - 59,267,745 170,472,858
Empl oye e  Sha re  ba s e d



Empl oye e  Sha re  ba s e d
pa yme nt LTIP (Note  22) - - - - - - - -
Transaction with owners - - - - - - - -
Ne t Addi ti ons  for the  ye a r - - - 3,228 - - - 1,445,501 1,448,729
Othe r compre he ns i ve
i ncome - - - - - (7,037,274) - (33,021) (7,070,295)
Total comprehensive income - - - 3,228 - (7,037,274) - 1,412,480 (5,621,566)

At 31 March 2025 400,733,511 58,909 131,451,482 3,228 8,216,152 (35,558,705) - 60,680,225 164,851,292

The  note s  a re  a n i nte gra l  pa rt of the s e  cons ol i da te d fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts
The  fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts  we re  a uthori s e d for i s s ue  by the  boa rd of di re ctors  on 01 Se pte mbe r 2025 a nd we re  s i gne d on i ts  be ha l f by
N Kuma r,
Non-Exe cuti ve  Cha i rma n

Aji t Pra ta p Si ngh
Non-Exe cuti ve  Di re ctor

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Al l  amounts  are in £, unless  otherwise stated)
 

1 Nature of operations    

O P G Power Ventures  P lc ('the Company' or 'O P GPV'), and i ts  subs idiaries  (col lec$vely referred
to as  'the Group') are primari ly engaged in the development, owning, opera$on and
maintenance of private sector power projects  in I ndia. The electrici ty generated from the
Group's  plants  i s  sold principal ly to publ ic sector undertakings  and heavy industria l
companies  in I ndia or in the short term market.  The bus iness  objec$ve of the group is  to focus
on the power genera$on bus iness  within I ndia and thereby provide rel iable, cost effec$ve
power to the industria l  consumers  and other users  under the 'open access ' provis ions
mandated by the Government of India.
 

2 Statement of compliance    

The consol idated financial  s tatements  of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
I nterna$onal  F inancial  Repor$ng Standards  (I F RS) - as  i ssued by the I nterna$onal  Accoun$ng
Standards  Board and the provis ions  of the I s le of Man, Companies  Act 2006 appl icable to
companies  reporting under IFRS.
 

3 General information    

O P G Power Ventures  P lc, a  l imited l iabi l i ty corpora$on, i s  the Group's  ul$mate parent Company
and is  incorporated and domici led in the I s le of Man.  The address  of the Company's  registered
O ffice, which is  a lso the principal  place of bus iness , i s  P O  Box I 45, Level  6 10A P rospect Hi l l
Douglas , Is le of Man, IM99 IFY. The Company's  equity shares  are l i s ted on the  AIM Market of the
London Stock Exchange.
 

4 Recent accounting pronouncements   

 Standards, amendments and interpreta0ons to exis0ng standards that are not yet effec0ve and
have not been adopted early by the Group
At the date of authorisa$on of these financial  s tatements , certain new standards, and
amendments  to exis$ng standards  have been publ ished by the I AS B that are not yet effec$ve,
and have not been adopted early by the Group. I nforma$on on those expected to be relevant to
the Group's  financial  s tatements  is  provided below.
 
Management an$cipates  that a l l  relevant pronouncements  wi l l  be adopted in the Group's
accoun$ng pol icies  for the first period beginning aQer the effec$ve date of the pronouncement.
New standards, interpreta$ons and amendments  not ei ther adopted or l i s ted below are not
expected to have a materia l  impact on the Group's  financial  s tatements .
 

Changes in accounting Standards        

The fol lowing standards  and amendments  to I F RS became effec$ve for the period beginning on 1
January 2024 and did not have a materia l  impact on the consol idated financial  s tatements:
 

·    I F RS 1, 'F i rst $me adop$on of I F RS' has  been amended with clarifica$on regarding
"Class ifica$on of Liabi l i$es  as  Current or Non-current (including amendments  related
to Non-current Liabi l i$es  with Covenants)". The amendments  clari fy the class ifica$on
of l iabi l i$es  as  current or non-current, based on the rights  in place at the repor$ng
date. They also require enhanced disclosures  for l iabi l i$es  subject to covenants  that
are tested post reporting period.

 
These amendments  did not result in reclass ifica$on of l iabi l i$es  on the statement of financial
pos i$on but have led to enhanced disclosures  where appl icable, par$cularly in respect of loan
agreements  with financial  covenants .
 

·    I F RS 16 - Lease Liabi l i ty in a  Sale and Leaseback has  been amended to provide
clarifica$on on how to measure lease l iabi l i$es  in sale and leaseback transac$ons to
ensure that the sel ler-lessee does  not recognize any gain or loss  related to the retained
right-of-use asset.

 
W hi le the Group did not enter into new sale and leaseback arrangements  during the repor$ng



W hile the Group did not enter into new sale and leaseback arrangements  during the repor$ng
period, the amendment has  been cons idered in assess ing lease-related transac$ons and
disclosures , i f any.
 

·    I AS 7 and I F RS 7 - Suppl ier F inance Arrangements  amendments  introduced a new
disclosure requirements  where suppl ier finance arrangements  exist. As  a  thermal
power generator, the Group enters  into structured arrangements  for procurement of
coal  and other cri$cal  inputs , where payment terms are supported by financial
intermediaries .

 
W hi le these arrangements  do not s ignificantly impact the class ifica$on of l iabi l i$es , the Group
has  provided addi$onal  disclosures  in N ote 24 to reflect the nature, terms, and associated
risks  of such arrangements , in compl iance with the new requirements .
 

Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Applicable       

The fol lowing new or amended standards  have been issued but are not yet effec$ve for the
Group's  repor$ng period. The Group has  not early adopted these standards  and is  currently
evaluating their potentia l  impact:
 

 IAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability (effective from 1 January 2025)
These amendments  address  s i tua$ons where exchangeabi l i ty of foreign currency is  lacking and
provide guidance on es$ma$ng a spot exchange rate. Given the Group's  capital  imports  and
cross-border transac$ons denominated in foreign currency (notably for turbine equipment and
spares), these amendments  may become relevant in jurisdic$ons with exchange restric$ons.
The Group is  assess ing potentia l  impl ications  in relevant markets .
 

 IF RS 10 and IA S 28 - Sale or Contribu0on of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
These amendments  clari fy the recogni$on of gains  or losses  on the sale or contribu$on of
assets  between an investor and i ts  associate or joint venture. The effec$ve date has  been
deferred indefini tely. The Group wi l l  apply these amendments  when they become effective.
 

 Future standards applicable beyond FY 2024-25 (not early adopted):
 
IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2027)
I ntroduces  revised presenta$on of income and expenses, including new subtotals  (e.g.,
operating profi t), and management performance measure disclosures.
 
IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures (effective 1 January 2027)
Permits  reduced disclosures  for el igible subs idiaries  within consol idated groups.
 
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 (effective 1 January 2026)
Address  class ifica$on of financial  instruments  with ES G-l inked features  and derecogni$on
guidance for electronic settlement of l iabi l i ties .
Amendments related to Nature-dependent Electricity Contracts
Clari fy the 'own-use' exemp$on for contracts  l ike power purchase agreements  (P PAs) and permit
hedge accounting for certain variable volume forecast transactions.

5 Summary of significant accounting policies  

Basis of preparation    

The consol idated financial  s tatements  of the Group have been prepared on a historical  cost
bas is , except for financial  assets  and l iabi l i$es  at fa i r value through profit or loss  and
financial  assets  measured at FVPL.
 
The consol idated financial  s tatements  are presented in accordance with I AS 1 P resenta$on of
Financial  Statements  and have been presented in Great Bri ta in Pounds ('₤'), the func$onal  and
presentation currency of the Company.
 

Going
Concern

         

I n response to con$nued global  disrup$ons, including pers istent infla$onary pressures ,
vola$le energy markets , and ongoing geopol i$cal  tens ions  such as  the war in Ukraine and
regional  instabi l i ty in the Middle East, the Group has  proac$vely conducted a Reverse Stress
Test (RST) to assess  the poten$al  impact on i ts  receivables , financial  assets , and overal l
l iquidity pos ition.
 
1) Despite heightened commodity price fluctua$ons and infla$onary headwinds, par$cularly in
coal  and other fuel  inputs , the Group's  financial  pos i$on remains  res i l ient. Market vola$l i ty
has  been managed through a discipl ined and forward-looking financial  framework.
2) The Group has  further enhanced i ts  risk management strategies  in F Y 2024-25, including
$ghter cost controls , dynamic procurement models , and opera$onal  efficiencies  across  thermal
power genera$on assets . These ini$a$ves  have mi$gated margin pressures  and preserved cash
flows amid an uncertain global  energy landscape.
3) As  at 31 March 2025, the Group held cash reserves  of £15.35mn and cumula$ve net current
assets  of £30.87mn. The Group's  l iquidity pos i$on remains  strong, supported by prudent
treasury management and divers ified funding l ines . This  ensures  ful l  coverage of short-term
obl iga$ons and provides  the financial  flexibi l i ty to navigate macroeconomic uncertain$es
without compromis ing operational  continuity.
4) The Group's  abi l i ty to rapidly adapt to evolving market condi$ons through scenario-based
planning, strategic hedging, and agi le decis ion-making has  been central  to maintaining stable
opera$ons and performance. This  adaptabi l i ty con$nues to be a core strength as  the Group
trans i$ons towards  long-term sustainabi l i ty goals , whi le ensuring energy rel iabi l i ty in the near
term.

 

Basis of consolidation    

The consol idated financial  s tatements  include the assets , l iabi l i ties  and results  of the operation



The consol idated financial  s tatements  include the assets , l iabi l i ties  and results  of the operation
of the Company and al l  of i ts  subs idiaries  as  of 31 March 2025. Al l  subs idiaries  have a
reporting date of 31 March.
 
A subs idiary is  defined as  an enti ty control led by the Company. The parent controls  a  subs idiary
i f i t i s  exposed, or has  rights , to variable returns  from i ts  involvement with the subs idiary and
has  the abi l i ty to affect those returns  through i ts  power over the subs idiary. Subs idiaries  are
ful ly consol idated from the date of acquis i$on, being the date on which effec$ve control  i s
acquired by the Group, and continue to be consol idated unti l  the date that such control  ceases.
Al l  transac$ons and balances  between Group companies  are el iminated on consol ida$on,
including unreal ised gains  and losses  on transac$ons between Group companies . W here
unreal ised losses  on intra-group asset sales  are reversed on consol ida$on, the underlying
asset i s  a lso tested for impairment from a group perspec$ve. Amounts  reported in the financial
statements  of subs idiaries  have been adjusted where necessary to ensure cons istency with the
accounting pol icies  adopted by the Group.
 
Non-control l ing interest represents  the por$on of profit or loss  and net assets  that i s  not held
by the Group and is  presented separately in the consol idated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consol idated statement of financial  pos i$on, separately from
parent shareholders ' equity. Acquis i$ons of addi$onal  stake or di lu$on of stake from/ to non-
control l ing interests/ other venturer in the Group where there is  no loss  of control  are
accounted for as  an equity transac$on, whereby, the difference between the cons idera$on paid
to or received from and the book value of the share of the net assets  i s  recognised in 'other
reserve' within statement of changes  in equity.
 

List of subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates  

Detai ls  of the Group's  subs idiaries  and joint ventures , which are consol idated into the Group's
consol idated financial  s tatements , are as  fol lows:
 

i) Subsidiaries  

 
 
 
Subsidiaries

Immediate
parent

Country of
incorporation

% Voting Right
% Economic

interest
 

March 2025
March
2024

March
2025

March
2024

 

Caromia Holdings
l imited ('CHL') OPGPV Cyprus 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

 

Gita Power and
Infrastructure Private
Limited, ('GPIPL') CHL India 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

 

OPG Power Generation
Private Limited
('OPGPG')* GPIPL India 100.00 81.42 100.00 99.99

 

Samriddhi  Surya
Vidyut Private Limited OPGPG India 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

 

Powergen Resources
Pte Ltd OPGPV Singapore 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00

 

*During the FY 2024-25, Gita  Power and Infrastructure Pvt Ltd became 100% holding company of OPG
Power Generation Pvt Ltd.

 

Foreign currency translation  

The func$onal  currency of the Company is  the Great Bri ta in Pound Sterl ing (£). The Cyprus  en$ty
is  an extens ion of the parent and pass  through investment en$ty. Accordingly the func$onal
currency of the subs idiary in Cyprus  is  the Great Bri ta in Pound Sterl ing. The func$onal  currency
of the Company's  subs idiaries  opera$ng in I ndia, determined based on evalua$on of the
individual  and col lec$ve economic factors  i s  I ndian Rupees  ('₹' or 'I NR'). The presenta$on
currency of the Group is  the Great Bri ta in Pound (£) as  submiFed to the AI M counter of the
London Stock Exchange where the shares  of the Company are l i s ted.
 
At the repor$ng date the assets  and l iabi l i$es  of the Group are trans lated into the presenta$on
currency at the rate of exchange prevai l ing at the repor$ng date and the income and expense for
each statement of profit or loss  are trans lated at the average exchange rate (unless  this  average
rate is  not a  reasonable approxima$on of the cumula$ve effect of the rates  prevai l ing on the
transac$on dates , in which case income and expense are trans lated at the rate on the date of
the transac$ons). Exchange differences  are charged/ credited to other comprehensive income
and recognized in the currency trans lation reserve in equity.
 
Transac$ons in foreign currencies  are trans lated at the foreign exchange rate prevai l ing at the
date of the transac$on. Monetary assets  and l iabi l i$es  denominated in foreign currencies  at
the Statement of financial  pos i$on date are trans lated into func$onal  currency at the foreign
exchange rate rul ing at that date. Aggregate gains  and losses  resul$ng from foreign currencies
are included in finance income or costs  within the profi t or loss .
 
I NR exchange rates  used to trans late the I NR financial  informa$on into the presenta$on
currency of Great Bri ta in Pound (£) are the clos ing rate as  at 31 March 2025: 110.38 (2024:
105.28) and the average rate for the year ended 31 March 2025: 107.88 (2024: 104.06).
 

 Revenue recognition  

I n accordance with I F RS 15 - Revenue from contracts  with customers, the group recognises
revenue to the extent that i t reflects  the expected cons ideration for goods or services  provided to
the customer under contract, over the performance obl iga$ons they are being provided. For
each separable performance obl iga$on iden$fied, the Group determines  whether i t i s  sa$sfied
at a  "point in $me" or "over $me" based upon an evalua$on of the receipt and consump$on of
benefi ts , control  of assets  and enforceable payment rights  associated with that obl igation. If the
cri teria  required for "over $me" recogni$on are not met, the performance obl iga$on is  deemed
to be sa$sfied at a  "point in $me". Revenue principal ly arises  as  a  result of the Group's
ac$vi$es  in electrici ty genera$on and distribu$on. Supply of power and bi l l ing sa$sfies



ac$vi$es  in electrici ty genera$on and distribu$on. Supply of power and bi l l ing sa$sfies
performance obl iga$ons. The supply of power is  invoiced in arrears  on a monthly bas is  and
general ly the payment terms within the Group are 10 to 45 days.

Revenue  

Revenue from providing electrici ty to Discoms under LTOA/M TOA is  recognised on the bas is  of
bi l l ing cycle under the contractual  arrangement with the Discoms and reflects  the value of units
of power suppl ied and the appl icable tariff aQer deduc$ons or discounts . Revenue is  earned at
a point in time of joint meter reading by both buyer and sel ler for each bi l l ing month.
 
I n accordance with the Group's  revenue recogni$on pol icy and the concept of prudence,
surcharges  on delayed customer payments  under LTOA contracts  are recognised only upon
receipt, to mi$gate the risk of non-recoverabi l i ty or s ignificant delays  in col lec$on. The same
recognition principle is  appl ied to amounts  aris ing from Change in Law cla ims as  per the PPA.
 
For STOA, revenue is  earned at a  point in $me of joint meter reading by both buyer and sel ler for
each bi l l ing month.
 
For IEX, revenue is  earned on dai ly bas is  of supply based on the bid and al lotted quantum which
gets  reconci led at a  point in time of meter reading for each bi l l ing month.
 

Interest and dividend  

Revenue from interest i s  recognised as  interest accrued (us ing the effec$ve interest rate
method). Revenue from dividends is  recognised when the right to receive the payment is
establ ished.

 Operating expenses  

O pera$ng expenses  are recognised in the statement of profit or loss  upon u$l isa$on of the
service or as  incurred.

 Taxes  

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss  comprises  the sum of deferred tax and current tax not
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
 
Current income tax assets  and/or l iabi l i$es  comprise those obl iga$ons to, or cla ims from,
taxa$on authori$es  rela$ng to the current or prior repor$ng periods, that are unpaid at the
repor$ng date. Current tax is  payable on taxable profit, which differs  from profit or loss  in the
financial  s tatements .
Calcula$on of current tax is  based on tax rates  and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
 
Deferred income taxes  are calculated us ing the l iabi l i ty method on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts  of assets  and l iabi l i$es  and their tax bases. However, deferred
tax is  not provided on the ini$al  recogni$on of goodwi l l , nor on the ini$al  recogni$on of an
asset or l iabi l i ty unless  the related transac$on is  a  bus iness  combina$on or affects  tax or
accounting profi t.
 
Deferred tax on temporary differences  associated with investments  in subs idiaries  i s  not
provided i f reversal  of these temporary differences  can be control led by the Group and i t i s
probable that reversal  wi l l  not occur in the foreseeable future.
 
Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i$es  are calculated, without discoun$ng, at tax rates  that are
expected to apply to their respec$ve period of real isa$on, provided they are enacted or
substan$vely enacted by the end of the repor$ng period. Deferred tax l iabi l i$es  are a lways
provided for in ful l .
Deferred tax assets  are recognised to the extent that i t i s  probable that they wi l l  be able to be
u$l ised against future taxable income. Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i$es  are offset only when
the Group has  a  right and the inten$on to set off current tax assets  and l iabi l i$es  from the same
taxa$on authori ty. Changes  in deferred tax assets  or l iabi l i$es  are recognised as  a  component
of tax income or expense in profit or loss , except where they relate to i tems that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is
a lso recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.
 

 Financial
assets

 

I F RS 9 F inancial  I nstruments  contains  regula$ons on measurement categories  for financial
assets  and financial  l iabi l i$es. I t a lso contains  regula$ons on impairments , which are based
on expected losses .
 
F inancial  assets  are class ified as  financial  assets  measured at amor$zed cost, financial  assets
measured at fa i r value through other comprehensive income (F VO C I ) and financial  assets
measured at fa i r value through profit and loss  (F VP L) based on the bus iness  model  and the
characteris$cs  of the cash flows. I f a  financial  asset i s  held for the purpose of col lec$ng
contractual  cash flows and the cash flows of the financial  asset represent exclus ively interest
and principal  payments , then the financial  asset i s  measured at amor$zed cost. A financial
asset i s  measured at fa i r value through other comprehensive income (F VO C I ) i f i t i s  used both to
col lect contractual  cash flows and for sales  purposes  and the cash flows of the financial  asset
cons ist exclus ively of interest and principal  payments . Unreal ized gains  and losses  from
financial  assets  measured at fa i r value through other comprehensive income (F VO C I ), net of
related deferred taxes, are reported as  a  component of equity (other comprehensive income)
un$l  real ized. Real ized gains  and losses  are determined by analyzing each transac$on
individual ly. Debt instruments  that do not exclus ively serve to col lect contractual  cash flows or
to both generate contractual  cash flows and sales  revenue, or whose cash flows do not
exclus ively cons ist of interest and principal  payments  are measured at fa i r value through profit
and loss  (F VP L). For equity instruments  that are held for trading purposes  the group has
uniformly exercised the op$on of recognizing changes  in fa i r value through profit or loss  (F VP L).
Refer to note 30 "Summary of financial  assets  and l iabi l i ties  by category and their fa i r values".
I mpairments  of financial  assets  are both recognized for losses  a lready incurred and for
expected future credit defaults . The amount of the impairment loss  calculated in the



expected future credit defaults . The amount of the impairment loss  calculated in the
determina$on of expected credit losses  is  recognized on the income statement. I mpairment
provis ions  for current and non-current trade receivables  are recognised based on the s impl ified
approach within I F RS 9 us ing a  provis ion matrix in the determina$on of the l i fe$me expected
credit losses . During this  process  the probabi l i ty of the non-payment of the trade receivables  is
assessed. This  probabi l i ty i s  then mul$pl ied by the amount of the expected loss  aris ing from
default to determine the l i fe$me expected credit loss  for the trade receivables . O n confirma$on
that the trade receivable wi l l  not be col lectable, the gross  carrying value of the asset i s  wriFen
off against the associated provis ion.
 

 Financial liabilities  

The Group's  financial  l iabi l i$es  include borrowings  and trade and other payables . F inancial
l iabi l i$es  are measured subsequently at amor$sed cost us ing the effec$ve interest method. Al l
interest-related charges  and, i f appl icable, changes  in an instrument's  fa i r value that are
reported in profi t or loss  are included within 'finance costs ' or 'finance income'.
 

 Fair value of financial instruments  

The fa ir value of financial  instruments  that are ac$vely traded in organised financial  markets  i s
determined by reference to quoted market prices  at the close of bus iness  on the Statement of
financial  pos i$on date. For financial  instruments  where there is  no ac$ve market, fa i r value is
determined us ing valua$on techniques. Such techniques  may include us ing recent arm's  length
market transac$ons; reference to the current fa i r value of another instrument that i s
substantia l ly the same; discounted cash flow analys is  or other valuation models .
 

 Property, plant and
equipment

 

P roperty, plant and equipment are stated at historical  cost, less  accumulated deprecia$on and
any impairment in value. Historical  cost includes  expenditure that i s  directly aFributable to
property plant & equipment such as  employee cost, borrowing costs  for long-term construc$on
projects  etc., i f recogni$on cri teria  are met.  Likewise, when a major inspec$on is  performed, i ts
costs  are recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as  a  replacement i f the
recogni$on cri teria  are sa$sfied. Al l  other repairs  and maintenance costs  are recognised in the
profi t or loss  as  incurred.
 
Land is  not depreciated. Depreciation on al l  other assets  i s  computed on straight-l ine bas is  over
the useful  l i fe of the asset based on management's  estimate as  fol lows:
 

Nature of
asset

  Useful life (years)   

Bui ldings 40  

Power
stations

40  

Other plant and equipment 1-5  

Vehicles 1-5  

Assets  in the course of construction are stated at cost and not depreciated unti l  commiss ioned.
An i tem of property, plant and equipment is  derecognised upon disposal  or when no future
economic benefits  are expected from i ts  use or disposal . Any gain or loss  aris ing on
derecogni$on of the asset (calculated as  the difference between the net disposal  proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) i s  included in the profit or loss  in the year the asset i s
derecognised.
The assets  res idual  values, useful  l ives  and methods of depreciation of the assets  are reviewed
at each financial  year end, and adjusted prospectively i f appropriate.
 

 Intangible assets  

Acquired software  

Acquired computer soQware l icences  are capital ised on the bas is  of the costs  incurred to
acquire and instal l  the speci fic software.
 

Subsequent measurement  

Al l  intangible assets , including soQware are accounted for us ing the cost model  whereby
capital ised costs  are amor$sed on a straight-l ine bas is  over their es$mated useful  l ives , as
these assets  are cons idered finite. Res idual  values  and useful  l ives  are reviewed at each
reporting date. The useful  l i fe of software is  estimated as  3-4 years .
 

 Borrowing costs  

Borrowing costs  directly aFributable to the acquis i$on, construc$on or produc$on of
qual i fying assets , that necessari ly take a substan$al  period of $me to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets . I nterest income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowing pending i ts  expenditure on qual i fying assets  i s
deducted from the costs  of these assets .
Gains  and losses  on ex$nguishment of l iabi l i ty, including those aris ing from substan$al
modifica$on from terms of loans  are not treated as  borrowing costs  and are charged to profit
or loss .
Al l  other borrowing costs  including transac$on costs  are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss  in the period in which they are incurred, the amount being determined us ing the effec$ve
interest rate method.
 

 Impairment of non-financial assets  

The Group assesses  at each repor$ng date whether there is  an indica$on that an asset may be
impaired. I f any such indica$on exists , or when annual  impairment tes$ng for an asset i s
required, the Group es$mates  the asset's  recoverable amount. An asset's  recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's  or cash-genera$ng unit's  (CGU) fa ir value less  costs  to sel l  and i ts  value



the higher of an asset's  or cash-genera$ng unit's  (CGU) fa ir value less  costs  to sel l  and i ts  value
in use and is  determined for an individual  asset, unless  the asset does  not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets  or Groups of assets . W here the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds i ts  recoverable amount, the asset i s  cons idered
impaired and is  wriFen down to i ts  recoverable amount. I n assess ing value in use, the
es$mated future cash flows are discounted to their present value us ing a  pre-tax discount rate
that reflects  current market assessments  of the $me value of money and the risks  specific to the
asset. I n determining fa ir value less  costs  to sel l , an appropriate valua$on model  i s  used. These
calcula$ons are corroborated by valua$on mul$ples , quoted share prices  for publ icly traded
subsidiaries  or other avai lable fa i r value indicators .
For assets  excluding goodwi l l , an assessment is  made at each reporting date as  to whether there
is  any indica$on that previous ly recognised impairment losses  may no longer exist or may have
decreased. I f such indica$on exists , the Group es$mates  the asset's  or cash-genera$ng unit's
recoverable amount. A previous ly recognised impairment loss  i s  reversed only i f there has  been
a change in the assump$ons used to determine the asset's  recoverable amount s ince the last
impairment loss  was  recognised. The reversal  i s  l imited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does  not exceed i ts  recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of deprecia$on, had no impairment loss  been recognised for the asset in prior
years . Such reversal  i s  recognised in the profi t or loss .
 

 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations  

Non-current assets  and any corresponding l iabi l i$es  held for sale and any directly aFributable
l iabi l i$es  are recognized separately from other assets  and l iabi l i$es  in the balance sheet in the
l ine i tems "Assets  held for sale" and "Liabi l i$es  associated with assets  held for sale" i f they can
be disposed of in their current condi$on and i f there is  sufficient probabi l i ty of their disposal
actual ly taking place. D iscon$nued opera$ons are components  of an en$ty that are ei ther held
for sale or have already been sold and can be clearly dis$nguished from other corporate
opera$ons, both opera$onal ly and for financial  repor$ng purposes. Addi$onal ly, the
component class ified as  a  discon$nued opera$on must represent a  major bus iness  l ine or a
specific geographic bus iness  segment of the Group. Non-current assets  that are held for sale
either individual ly or col lec$vely as  part of a  disposal  group, or that belong to a  discon$nued
opera$on, are no longer depreciated. They are instead accounted for at the lower of the carrying
amount and the fa ir value less  any remaining costs  to sel l . I f this  value is  less  than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss  i s  recognized. The income and losses  resul$ng from the
measurement of components  held for sale as  wel l  as  the gains  and losses  aris ing from the
disposal  of discon$nued opera$ons, are reported separately on the face of the income
statement under income/loss  from discon$nued opera$ons, net, as  i s  the income from the
ordinary opera$ng ac$vi$es  of these divis ions. P rior-year income statement figures  are
adjusted accordingly.  However, there is  no reclass ifica$on of prior-year balance sheet l ine
items attributable to discontinued operations.
 
I n case of reclass ifica$on, previous ly recognised impairment loss  i s  reversed only i f there has
been a change in the assump$ons used to determine the investment's  recoverable amount s ince
the last impairment loss  was  recognised. The reversal  i s  l imited so that the carrying amount of
the investment does  not exceed i ts  recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, had no impairment loss  been recognised for the investments  in
prior years . Such reversal  i s  recognised in the profit or loss . O nce the Company ceases  to
class i fy a  component as  assets  held for sale, the results  of that component previous ly presented
in discon$nued opera$ons wi l l  be reclass ified and included in income from con$nuing
operation for the period presented.
 

 Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents  in the Statement of financial  pos ition includes  cash in hand and at
bank and short-term deposits  with original  maturi ty period of 3 months  or less .
 
For the purpose of the consol idated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents  cons ist of
cash in hand and at bank and short-term deposits . Restricted cash represents  deposits  which
are subject to a  fixed charge and held as  securi ty for speci fic borrowings  and are not included
in cash and cash equivalents .
 

 Inventories  

I nventories  are stated at the lower of cost and net real isable value. Costs  incurred in bringing
each product to i ts  present loca$on and condi$on is  accounted based on weighted average
price. Net real isable value is  the es$mated sel l ing price in the ordinary course of bus iness , less
estimated sel l ing expenses.
 

 Earnings per share  

The earnings  cons idered in ascertaining the Group's  earnings  per share (EP S) comprise the net
profit for the year aFributable to ordinary equity holders  of the parent. The number of shares
used for compu$ng the bas ic EP S is  the weighted average number of shares  outstanding during
the year. For the purpose of calcula$ng di luted earnings  per share the net profit or loss  for the
period aFributable to equity share holders  and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects  of a l l  di lutive potentia l  equity share.
 

 Other provisions and contingent liabilities  

P rovis ions  are recognised when present obl iga$ons as  a  result of a  past event wi l l  probably
lead to an ouRlow of economic resources  from the Group and amounts  can be es$mated
rel iably. Timing or amount of the ouRlow may s$l l  be uncertain. A present obl iga$on arises
from the presence of a  legal  or construc$ve obl iga$on that has  resulted from past events .
Restructuring provis ions  are recognised only i f a  detai led formal  plan for the restructuring has
been developed and implemented, or management has  at least announced the plan's  main
features  to those affected by i t. Provis ions  are not recognised for future operating losses .
 
P rovis ions  are measured at the es$mated expenditure required to seFle the present obl iga$on,
based on the most rel iable evidence avai lable at the repor$ng date, including the risks  and
uncertain$es  associated with the present obl iga$on. W here there are a  number of s imi lar



uncertain$es  associated with the present obl iga$on. W here there are a  number of s imi lar
obl iga$ons, the l ikel ihood that an ouRlow wi l l  be required in seFlement is  determined by
considering the class  of obl iga$ons as  a  whole. P rovis ions  are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is  materia l .
 
Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtual ly certain to col lect from a third party with
respect to the obl iga$on is  recognised as  a  separate asset. However, this  asset may not exceed
the amount of the related provis ion. Al l  provis ions  are reviewed at each repor$ng date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
 
I n those cases  where the poss ible ouRlow of economic resources  as  a  result of present
obl iga$ons is  cons idered improbable or remote, no l iabi l i ty i s  recognised, unless  i t was
assumed in the course of a  bus iness  combina$on. I n a  bus iness  combina$on, con$ngent
l iabi l i$es  are recognised on the acquis i$on date when there is  a  present obl iga$on that arises
from past events  and the fa ir value can be measured rel iably, even i f the ouRlow of economic
resources  is  not probable. They are subsequently measured at the higher amount of a
comparable provis ion as  described above and the amount recognised on the acquis i$on date,
less  any amortisation.
 

 Share based payments  

The Group operates  equity-seFled share-based remunera$on plans  for i ts  employees. None of
the Group's  plans  feature any options  for a  cash settlement.
 
Al l  goods and services  received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are
measured at their fa i r values. W here employees  are rewarded us ing share-based payments , the
fair values  of employees ' services  is  determined indirectly by reference to the fa ir value of the
equity instruments  granted. This  fa i r value is  appraised at the grant date and excludes  the
impact of non-market ves$ng condi$ons (for example profitabi l i ty and sales  growth targets  and
performance conditions).
 
Al l  share-based remunera$on is  ul$mately recognised as  an expense in profit or loss  with a
corresponding credit to 'Other Reserves '.
 
I f ves$ng periods  or other ves$ng condi$ons apply, the expense is  a l located over the ves$ng
period, based on the best avai lable es$mate of the number of share op$ons expected to vest.
Non-market ves$ng condi$ons are included in assump$ons about the number of op$ons that
are expected to become exercisable. Es$mates  are subsequently revised i f there is  any
indica$on that the number of share op$ons expected to vest differs  from previous  es$mates.
Any cumula$ve adjustment prior to ves$ng is  recognised in the current period. No adjustment is
made to any expense recognised in prior periods  i f share op$ons ul$mately exercised are
di fferent to that estimated on vesting.
 
Upon exercise of share op$ons, the proceeds received net of any directly aFributable
transac$on costs  up to the nominal  value of the shares  issued are a l located to share capital
with any excess  being recorded as  share premium.
 

 Employee benefits  

 Gratuity          

I n accordance with appl icable I ndian laws, the Group provides  for gratuity, a  defined benefit
re$rement plan ("the Gratuity P lan") covering el igible employees. The Gratuity P lan provides  a
lump-sum payment to vested employees  at re$rement, death, incapacita$on or termina$on of
employment, of an amount based on the respec$ve employee's  salary and the tenure of
employment.
 
Liabi l i$es  with regard to the gratuity plan are determined by actuaria l  valua$on, performed by
an independent actuary, at each Statement of financial  pos i$on date us ing the projected unit
credit method.
 
The Group recognises  the net obl iga$on of a  defined benefit plan in i ts  statement of financial
pos i$on as  an asset or l iabi l i ty, respec$vely in accordance with I AS 19, Employee benefits . The
discount rate is  based on the Government securi$es  yield. Actuaria l  gains  and losses  aris ing
from experience adjustments  and changes  in actuaria l  assump$ons are charged or credited to
profi t or loss  in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
 

Employees Benefit Trust  

The Group has  establ ished an Employees  Benefit Trust (hereinaQer 'the EBT') for investments  in
the Company's  shares  for employee benefit schemes. I O M A Fiduciary in the I s le of Man have
been appointed as  Trustees  of the EBT with ful l  discretion invested in the Trustee, independent of
the company, in the maFer of share purchases. As  at present, no investments  have been made by
the Trustee nor any funds  advanced by the Company to the EBT. The Company is  yet to formulate
any employee benefi t schemes or to make awards  thereunder.
 

 Business combinations  

Business  combina$ons aris ing from transfers  of interests  in en$$es that are under the control
of the shareholder that controls  the Group are accounted for as  i f the acquis i$on had occurred
at the beginning of the earl iest compara$ve period presented or, i f later, at the date that
common control  was  establ ished us ing pool ing of interest method. The assets  and l iabi l i$es
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts  recognised previous ly in the Group control l ing
shareholder's  consol idated financial  s tatements . The components  of equity of the acquired
en$$es are added to the same components  within Group equity. Any excess  cons idera$on paid
is  directly recognised in equity.
 

Segment reporting  

The Group has  adopted the "management approach" in iden$fying the opera$ng segments  as
outl ined in I F RS 8 - O pera$ng segments . Segments  are reported in a  manner cons istent with the



outl ined in I F RS 8 - O pera$ng segments . Segments  are reported in a  manner cons istent with the
internal  repor$ng provided to the chief opera$ng decis ion maker. The Board of Directors  being
the chief opera$ng decis ion maker evaluate the Group's  performance and al locates  resources
based on an analys is  of various  performance indicators  at operating segment level . During FY25
there is  only one opera$ng segment thermal  power. There are no geographical  segments  as  a l l
revenues arise from India. Al l  the non current assets  are located in India.
 

6 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions  

The prepara$on of financial  s tatements  in conformity with I F RS requires  management to make
certain cri$cal  accoun$ng es$mates  and assump$ons that affect the reported amounts  of
assets  and l iabi l i$es  and the disclosure of con$ngent assets  and l iabi l i$es  at the date of the
financial  s tatements  and the reported amounts  of revenues and expenses  during the repor$ng
period.
The principal  accoun$ng pol icies  adopted by the Group in the consol idated financial
statements  are as  set out above. The appl ica$on of a  number of these pol icies  requires  the
Group to use a  variety of es$ma$on techniques  and apply judgment to best reflect the
substance of underlying transactions.
 
The Group has  determined that a  number of i ts  accoun$ng pol icies  can be cons idered
s ignificant, in terms of the management judgment that has  been required to determine the
various  assump$ons underpinning their appl ica$on in the consol idated financial  s tatements
presented which, under different condi$ons, could lead to materia l  differences  in these
statements . The actual  results  may differ from the judgments , es$mates  and assump$ons made
by the management and wi l l  seldom equal  the estimated results .
 

Judgements  

The fol lowing are s ignificant management judgments  in applying the accoun$ng pol icies  of the
Group that have the most s igni ficant effect on the financial  s tatements .

Recoverability of deferred tax assets  

The recogni$on of deferred tax assets  requires  assessment of future taxable profit (see note
5(h)). Deferred tax assets  are recognised to the extent that i t i s  probable that they wi l l  be able to
be uti l i sed against future taxable income.
 

Estimates and uncertainties:  

The key assump$ons concerning the future and other key sources  of es$ma$on uncertainty at
the Statement of financial  pos i$on date, that have a s ignificant risk of caus ing materia l
adjustments  to the carrying amounts  of assets  and l iabi l i$es  within the next financial  year are
discussed below:

i ) Es$ma$on of fa i r value of financial  assets  and financial  l iabi l i$es: W hi le preparing the
financial  s tatements  the Group makes  es$mates  and assump$ons that affect the reported
amount of financial  assets  and financial  l iabi l i ties .
 

Trade Receivables  

The group ascertains  the expected credit losses  (EC L) for a l l  receivables  and adequate
impairment provis ion are made. At the end of each repor$ng period a review of the
al lowance for impairment of trade receivables  is  performed. Trade receivables  do not
contain a  s ignificant financing element, and therefore expected credit losses  are measured
using the s impl ified approach permiFed by I F RS 9, which requires  l i fe$me expected credit
losses  to be recognised on ini$al  recogni$on. A provis ion matrix i s  u$l ised to es$mate the
l i fe$me expected credit losses  based on the age, status  and risk of each class  of receivable,
which is  periodical ly updated to include changes  to both forward-looking and historical
inputs .

 
Financial assets measured at FVPL

 

Management appl ies  valua$on techniques  to determine the fa ir value of financial  assets
measured at F VP L where ac$ve market quotes  are not avai lable. This  requires  management
to develop es$mates  and assump$ons based on market inputs , us ing observable data that
market par$cipants  would use in pricing the asset. W here such data is  not observable,
management uses  i ts  best es$mate. Es$mated fa ir values  of the asset may vary from the
actual  prices  that would be achieved in an arm's  length transaction at the reporting date.

i i ) I mpairment tests : I n assess ing impairment, management es$mates  the recoverable amount
of each asset or cash-genera$ng units  based on expected future cash flows and use an
interest rate for discoun$ng them. Es$ma$on uncertainty relates  to assump$ons about
future opera$ng results  including fuel  prices , foreign currency exchange rates  etc. and the
determina$on of a  suitable discount rate. The management cons iders  impairment upon
there being evidence that there might be an impairment, such as  a  lower market
capital ization of the group or a  downturn in results .
 

i i i ) Useful  l i fe of depreciable assets : Management reviews i ts  es$mate of the useful  l ives  of
depreciable assets  at each reporting date, based on the expected uti l i ty of the assets .
 

7 Segment Reporting  

The Group has  adopted the "management approach" in iden$fying the opera$ng segments  as
outl ined in I F RS 8 - O pera$ng segments . Segments  are reported in a  manner cons istent with the
internal  repor$ng provided to the chief opera$ng decis ion maker. The Board of Directors  being
the chief opera$ng decis ion maker evaluate the Group's  performance and al locates  resources
based on an analys is  of various  performance indicators  at operating segment level . During FY25
there is  only one opera$ng segment thermal  power. There are no geographical  segments  as  a l l
revenues arise from India. Al l  the non current assets  are located in India.
 
Revenue on account of sale of power to customer exceeding 10% of total  sa les  revenue amounts
to £33,512,393 from TANGED CO  & £33,083,787 from I EX  & £19,593,900 and £50,690,276 from
STOA sales  to Andhra P radesh Discom and Haryana Discom respec$vely (2024:
£157,896,815.90).



Segmental information disclosure        

     
Continuing operations

  

     
Thermal

  

Segment Revenue
  

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
  

Sales
156,738,456 160,794,155

 

 Total     
156,738,456 160,794,155   

Other Operating income 3,673,412 3,573,242
 

 
  

Depreciation, impairment (5,695,201) (5,521,962)
 

 
  

Profi t from operation 8,134,124 11,632,680
 

Finance
Income 3,205,785 1,662,256

 

Finance
Cost (6,097,115) (5,571,272)

 

Tax
expenses (3,797,292) (3,443,893)

 

Reversal  of FV Impairment of associates - -
 

Share of Profi t, (Loss) on fa ir value of investments , in
Solar enti ties - -

 

 
Profit / (loss) for the year

  1,445,501 4,279,771   

 

Loss  on deconsol idation of Solar enti ties  amounted to £2,078 during the FY 2023-24.  

 

The comparative amounts  for the prior year have been reclass i fied to reflect changes  in the presentation
of coal  sales  on a gross  bas is . This  adjustment is  presenta$on-only and has  no impact on previous ly
reported profi t or equity.

 

Assets 229,466,086 272,935,916
 

Liabi l i ties 64,614,795 102,457,236
 

 

 8  Costs of inventories and employee benefit expenses included in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income

 a) Cost of fuel

  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 Included in cost of revenue:

 Cost of fuel  consumed 126,994,512 129,139,703

 Other direct costs 5,540,575 3,646,344

 Total  132,535,087 132,786,047

     

 b) Employee benefi t expenses  forming part of general  and administrative expenses  are as  fol lows:

  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
 Salaries  and wages 2,848,703 2,492,231
 Employee benefi t costs

294,490 487,530
 Long Term Incentive Plan (Note 22)

- -
 Total 3,143,193 2,979,761
 

 c) Foreign exchange movements  (real ised and unreal ised) included in the Finance costs  i s  as  fol lows:

  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
 Foreign exchange real ised - loss  / (gain) 509,951 75,627
 Foreign exchange unreal ised- loss  / (gain)

528,738 170,950
 Total  1,038,689 246,577
  

 
d) Auditor's  remunera$on for audit services  amoun$ng to £50,600 (2024: £46,000) i s  included in general

and administrative expenses  and excludes  travel  reimbursements .
 

 
Certain i tems previous ly presented within General  and Administra$ve Expenses  have been reclass ified
to O ther Comprehensive I ncome to beFer reflect their nature. Compara$ve figures  have been adjusted
accordingly. This  change is  presentation-only and does  not impact profi t or equity.

  

 9  Other operating income and expenses

    

  a) Other operating income



  a) Other operating income

    31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
   

Surcharge TANGEDCO  3,872,650 2,977,906
   Sale of Solar  

16,932 -
  

Margin on Trading of Power (216,171) 595,336
  

Total  3,673,412 3,573,242
  Surcharge from Other operating income represents  contractual  cla ims payments  from company's

customers  under the power purchase agreements  which were accumulated over several  periods.
 b) Other income

  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
 

Provis ions  no longer required written back1 3,761,778 -
 

Sale of coal  (Margin) - 338,390
 

Sale of fly ash 153,722 123,996
 

Power trading commiss ion and other services - -
 

Profi t on disposal  of financial  instruments2 (38,087) (297,408)
 

Others 121,351 4,559
 

Total  3,998,765 169,536

 

1 During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group reviewed i ts  outstanding provis ions  as  part of i ts
year-end financial  close and risk reassessment processes. Fol lowing this  review, a  provis ion of £
3,761,778 was assessed as  no longer required. The underlying obl iga$on has  been either resolved,
expired without materia l isa$on of l iabi l i ty, or i s  no longer cons idered probable based on updated
opera$onal  assessments . Accordingly, the provis ion was released in ful l  during the current financial
year, resul$ng in a  credit to the income statement under O ther I ncome. This  release has  no impact on
the Group's  opera$onal  performance or cash flows and reflects  the Group's  prudent approach to
financial  ri sk management.
 

 2P rofits  on disposal  of financial  instruments  unreal ised gain/loss  on mark to market rate as  on
reporting date of mutual  funds  held during the year.

 

 10  Finance costs

 Finance costs  are comprised of:

  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
 

Interest expenses  on borrowings  4,793,299 4,572,000
 

Net foreign exchange loss  (Note 9) 357,460 246,578
 

Other finance costs 946,356 752,695
 

Total  6,097,115 5,571,272
 Other finance costs  include charges  and cost related to LC's  for import of coal  and other charges  levied

by bank on transactions
 

 11  Finance income

 Finance income is  comprised of:

  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
 

Interest income on bank deposits  and advances 2,745,341 1,662,256
 

Profi t on disposal  of financial  instruments* 460,444 -
 

Total 3,205,785 1,662,256
 *Profi ts  on disposal  of financial  instruments  unreal ised gain/loss  on mark to market rate as  on

reporting date of mutual  funds  held during the year.
 

 12  Tax expenses

 

 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 
Current tax (1,418,583) (1,250,941)

 
Earl ier Year tax adjustments (370,467) -

 
Deferred tax (2,008,243) (2,192,952)

 
Total  tax expenses  on income from continued operations (3,797,292) (3,443,893)

 
Add:  tax on income from discontinuing operations - -

 
Tax reported in the statement of comprehensive income (3,797,292) (3,443,893)

 

 

The Company is  subject to I s le of Man corporate tax at the standard rate of zero percent. As  such, the
Company's  tax l iabi l i ty i s  zero. Addi$onal ly, I s le of Man does  not levy tax on capital  gains . However,
cons idering that the group's  opera$ons are primari ly based in I ndia, the effec$ve tax rate of the Group
has  been computed based on the current tax rates  prevai l ing in India.  Further, a  portion of the profi ts  of
the Group's  I ndia opera$ons are exempt from I ndian income taxes  being profits  aFributable to
genera$on of power in I ndia. Under the tax hol iday the taxpayer can u$l ize an exemp$on from income
taxes  for a  period of any ten consecutive years  out of a  total  of fi fteen consecutive years  from the date of
commencement of the opera$ons. However, the en$$es in I ndia are s$l l  l iable for Minimum Alternate



commencement of the opera$ons. However, the en$$es in I ndia are s$l l  l iable for Minimum Alternate
Tax (M AT) which is  calculated on the book profits  of the respec$ve en$$es currently at a  rate of 17.47%
(31 March 2024: 17.47%).
 

 
The Group has  carried forward credit in respect of M AT tax l iabi l i ty paid to the extent i t i s  probable that
future taxable profi t wi l l  be avai lable against which such tax credit can be uti l i zed.
 

 Deferred income tax for the group at 31 March 2025 & 31 March 2024 relates  to the fol lowing:
 

 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 Deferred income tax assets

 Unused tax losses  brought forward and carried forward
- -

 MAT credit enti tlement
12,692,271 10,920,740

 
12,692,271 10,920,740

 Deferred income tax l iabi l i ties

 Property, plant and equipment
34,344,375 31,578,613

 Mark to market on avai lable-for-sale financial  assets
- -

 
34,344,375 31,578,613

 Deferred income tax liabilities, net 21,652,104 20,657,873
 

 Movement in temporary di fferences  during the year

 

Particulars
As at 01

April 2024

Deferred
tax asset /

(liability)
for the year

Changes due
to

reclassification
Translation
adjustment

As at 31
March 2025

 

 
Prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt (31,578,613) (3,565,832) (317,449) 1,117,519.68 (34,344,375)

 

 Unus e d ta x l os s e s  brought
forwa rd a nd ca rri e d forwa rd - - - - -

 

 
MAT cre di t e nti tl e me nt 10,920,740 1,557,589 600,410 (386,469) 12,692,271

 

 
Ma rk to ma rke t ga i n / (l os s ) on
fi na nci a l  a s s e ts  me a s ure d a t
FVPL - - - - -

 

 Deferred income tax (liabilities) /
assets, net (20,657,873) (2,008,243) 282,961 731,051 (21,652,104)

 

  

 

Particulars
As at 01

April 2023

Deferred
tax asset /

(liability)
for the year

Classified as
(Asset) /

Liability held
for sale

Translation
adjustment

As at 31 Mar
2024

 

 
Prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt (30,929,471) (2,810,234) - 2,161,091 (31,578,613)

 

 Unus e d ta x l os s e s  brought
forwa rd a nd ca rri e d forwa rd - - - - -

 

 
MAT cre di t e nti tl e me nt 11,741,110 - - (820,370) 10,920,740

 

 
Ma rk to ma rke t ga i n / (l os s ) on
fi na nci a l  a s s e ts  me a s ure d a t
FVPL - - - - -

 

 Deferred income tax (liabilities) /
assets, net (19,188,361) (2,810,234) - 1,340,721 (20,657,873)

 

 

 

I n assess ing the recoverabi l i ty of deferred income tax assets , management cons iders  whether i t i s  more
l ikely than not that some por$on or a l l  of the deferred income tax assets  wi l l  be real ized. The ul$mate
real iza$on of deferred income tax assets  i s  dependent upon the genera$on of future taxable income
during the periods  in which the temporary differences  become deduc$ble. The amount of the deferred
income tax assets  cons idered real izable, however, could be reduced in the near term i f es$mates  of
future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.
 

 

 
Shareholders  res ident outs ide the I s le of Man wi l l  not suffer any income tax in the I s le of Man on any
income distributions  to them. However, dividends are taxable in India in the hands of the recipient.
 

 

 

There is  no unrecognised deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i$es. As  at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
there was no recognised deferred tax l iabi l i ty for taxes  that would be payable on the unremiFed
earnings  of certain of the Group's  subs idiaries , as  the Group has  determined that undistributed profits
of i ts  subs idiaries  wi l l  not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
 

 

 

 
13  Intangible assets Acquired

software
licences

 

 
Cost

 
At 31 March 2023 777,099

 

 
Additions 9,718

 

 
Exchange adjustments (28,387)

 

 
At 31 March 2024 758,430

 

 

 
At 31 March 2024 758,430

 



At 31 March 2024 758,430
 

Additions 31,883
 

 
Exchange adjustments (35,712)

 

 
At 31 March 2025 754,601

 

 

 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

 
At 31 March 2023 763,698

 

 
Charge for the year 5,571

 

 
Exchange adjustments (27,849)

 

   
At 31 March 2024

     
741,419

 

 

 
At 31 March 2024 741,419

 

 
Charge for the year 9,945

 

 
Exchange adjustments (34,428)

 

 
At 31 March 2025 716,936

 

 

 
Net book value

 
At 31 March 2025 37,664

 

 
At 31 March 2024 17,010

 

  
 

 14  Property, plant and equipment

    

 The property, plant and equipment comprises  of:

 Land &
Buildings Power stations

Other plant
&

equipment Vehicles
Right-of-

use
Asset under

construction Total
 

 
Cost

 

   At 1st April
2023 8,396,200 202,905,038 1,835,087 656,125 43,030 1,262,898 215,098,377

 

 
Addi ti ons

11,920
671,051 176,718 2,329,426 - 359,225 3,548,338

 

 Tra ns fe rs  on
ca pi ta l i s a ti on - - - - - - -

 

 Sa l e  /
Di s pos a l s

-
- (45,827) - (43,030) (19,821) (108,678)

 

 Excha nge
a djus tme nts (304,810) (7,422,075) (66,375) (23,766) - (55,791) (7,872,817)

 

 At 31 March
2024 8,103,311 196,154,014 1,899,603 2,961,784 0 1,546,509 210,665,221

 

 
 

 
      

 

   At 1st April
2024 8,103,311 196,154,014 1,899,603 2,961,784 0 1,546,509 210,665,221

 

 
Addi ti ons

504,863
3,719,837 404,627 29,290 - 501,538 5,160,155

 

 Tra ns fe rs  on
ca pi ta l i s a ti on - - - - - (1,633,595) (1,633,595)

 

 Sa l e  /
Di s pos a l s - - - - - - -

 

 Excha nge
a djus tme nts (379,583) (9,142,766) (95,783) (137,039) - (52,899) (9,808,070)

 

 At 31 March
2025 8,228,590 190,731,085 2,208,446 2,854,036 0 361,552 204,383,710

 

  

 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

 

 At 1 April
2023 85,973 47,256,628 1,596,667 551,457 0 - 49,490,726

 

 Cha rge  for
the  ye a r 12,861 5,130,451 207,118 165,962 - - 5,516,391

 

 Sa l e  /
Di s pos a l s - - (38,738) - - - (38,738)

 

 Excha nge
a djus tme nts (4,005) (1,782,585) (60,055) (21,805) - - (1,868,449)

 

   At 31 March
2024 94,829 50,604,493 1,704,992 695,613 0 - 53,099,930

 

 
 

 
      

 

 At 1 April
2024 94,829 50,604,493 1,704,992 695,613 0 - 53,099,930

 

 Cha rge  for
the  ye a r 54,136 5,003,405 144,074 483,642 - - 5,685,256

 

 Sa l e  /
Di s pos a l s - - - - - - -

 

 Excha nge
a djus tme nts (6,527) (2,440,314) (81,408) (42,844) - - (2,571,094)

 

   At 31 March
2025 142,438 53,167,584 1,767,658 1,136,410 0 - 56,214,092

 

  

 Net book  



 Net book
value

 

 At 31 March
2025 8,086,153 137,563,502 440,788 1,717,625 (0) 361,552 148,169,618

 

 At 31 March
2024 8,008,481 145,549,521 194,611 2,266,171 (0) 1,546,509 157,565,290

 

  

   The net book value of land and bui ldings  block comprises  of:

 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 

 
Freehold land 7,253,320 7,626,376

 

 
Bui ldings 832,833 382,106

 

 Total 8,086,153 8,008,482
 

 

 

As part of the consol ida$on process , the carrying amounts  of non-monetary assets , including
P roperty, P lant and Equipment (P P E), are restated at the clos ing exchange rates  prevai l ing as  at the
repor$ng date. The resul$ng foreign exchange differences  are not recognised in profit or loss  but are
instead recorded in O ther Comprehensive I ncome (O C I ) and accumulated in the Foreign Currency
Trans la$on Reserve within equity. The "Exchange adjustments" in the table above is  primari ly due to
fluctua$ons in exchange rates  between the func$onal  currencies  of those subs idiaries  (I NR) and the
Group's  presentation currency (GBP).
 
This  trans la$on difference has  no impact on the Group's  cash flows or underlying opera$onal
performance and reflects  currency volati l i ty at the reporting date.

 

 

 

The Group cons idered both qual i tative and quanti tative factors  when determining whether an Asset or
CGU may be impaired. Assets  related to each segment and the cash inflows generated are separately
iden$fiable and independent of other assets  or groups of assets . No impairment loss  was  recognized
for the consulting segment during the year 24-25.
 

 

 

The recoverable amount of segment was  determined based on value-in-use calcula$ons, covering a
detai led 20 year period forecast for Thermal  Assets  us ing D C F methodology by management. The
present value of the expected cash flows is  determined by applying a  suitable discount rate reflec$ng
current market assessments  of the time value of money and risks  speci fic to the segment.
 

 

 
The P resent Value of Cash Flows thus  determined were compared with the Carrying Cost of P P E and i t
was  found that the PV Values  were on the Higher s ide of the Carrying cost of P roperty P lant and
Equipment.
 

 

 
Year ended 31 March 2025 Thermal £ Mn

 

 
Present Value of Cash Flows 176.01

 

 
Carrying Cost of PPE 145.11

 

 

 

Appropriate sens i$vi$es  to understand impact on key es$mates  and under a l l  scenarios  were tested
and no impairment was  triggered. Group has  a lso cons idered the impact of cl imate change and
global  energy trans i$on.  Coal  fired power genera$on wi l l  remain key to the energy mix for I ndia over
the l i fe of the Power Sta$on. W ith the above calcula$ons, i t was  concluded that there is  no
impairment in Thermal  Assets .

 

 

 15 Investments accounted for using the equity method

 The carrying amount of investments  accounted for us ing the equity method in other en$$es is  as
fol lows:

 

 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 

 Other
Enti ties 14,005,609 18,307,543

 

 Total carrying Amount 14,005,609 18,307,543
 

  

 16  Other Assets  

 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 

 a. Short-term  

 Capital  advances
- -

 

 Financial  instruments  measured at fa i r value through P&L
5,858,860 9,893,198

 

 Advances  and other receivables*
14,128,768 8,293,435

 

 Total 19,987,627 18,186,633
 

 

 

*The officials  from Directorate of Enforcement (ED), Chennai  Zonal  O ffice, conducted search
opera$ons in the premises  connected to the O P G Group on 11th & 12th November 2024 in respect
of a l leged viola$ons under Foreign Exchange Management Act (F EM A) and Foreign Direct
I nvestment (F D I ) Regula$ons. The company has  ful ly cooperated with the authori$es  and provided
al l  bus iness  related informa$on as  per their request. The company has  compl ied with a l l  the
regula$ons and wi l l  con$nue to cooperate with the authori$es  and shal l  provide al l  necessary
detai ls  as  and when required by the department.
 
Advances  and other receivables  include Balance with government authori$es  amoun$ng to
£0.03mn seized by the Directorate of Enforcement Officia ls  during the above search.

 

 



 

 b. Long-term  

 Advances  to related
parties - -

 

 Class i fied as  asset held for sale
- -

 

 Lease deposits
- -

 

 Bank deposits
658,306 512,358

 

 Other advances
- -

 

 Total 658,306 512,358
 

 
The financial  instruments  of £5,858,860 (F Y24: £9,893,198) represent investments  in mutual  funds
and Bonds - their fa i r value is  determined by reference to publ ished data.
 

 

 17  Trade and other receivables

 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 

 
Current

 

 
 Trade receivables 21,006,192 37,086,020

 

 
 Other receivables - -

 

 
Total 21,006,192 37,086,020

 

 

 

The Group's  trade receivables  are class ified at amor$sed cost unless  stated otherwise and are
measured aQer a l lowances  for future expected credit losses , see "Credit risk analys is" in note 32
"Financial  ri sk management objec$ves  and pol icies" for more informa$on on credit risk. The
carrying amounts  of trade and other receivables , which are measured at amor$sed cost,
approximate their fa i r value and are predominantly non-interest bearing.

 

 

 18  Inventories

 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 

 
Coal  and fuel 4,098,400 17,317,906

 

 
Stores  and spares 1,299,608 1,418,793

 

 
Total 5,398,008 18,736,699

 

   The entire amount of above inventories  has  been pledged as  securi ty for borrowings  

 

 19  Cash and cash equivalents

    

 Cash and short term deposits comprise of the following:

 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  

 
Investment in Mutual  funds - -

 

 
Cash at banks  and on hand 12,402,254 11,714,256

 

 
 Short-term deposits 2,946,094 -

 

 
Total 15,348,348 11,714,256

 

 
Short-term deposits  are placed for varying periods, depending on the immediate cash
requirements  of the Group. They are recoverable on demand. 
 

 

 20 Restricted cash        

 

 a. Restricted cash - Current        

 
Current restricted cash represents  deposits  and mutual  funds  with the maturi ty up to twelve
months  amounting to £2,736,441 (2024 - £8,250,594) which have been l ien marked by the Group in
order to establ ish LeFers  of Credits , Bank Guarantees  from the bankers  and debenture redemp$on
fund.

 

 

 b. Restricted cash - Non-Current      

 Non-Current restricted cash represents  deposits  and mutual  funds  with the maturi ty more than
twelve months  amounting to £1,463,539 (2024 - £1,862,075).

 

 

 21  Issued share capital

    

 Share Capital

 

The Company presently has  only one class  of ordinary shares. For a l l  maFers  submiFed to vote in
the shareholders  mee$ng, every holder of ordinary shares , as  reflected in the records  of the Group
on the date of the shareholders ' mee$ng, has  one vote in respect of each share held. Al l  shares  are
equal ly el igible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital  in the event of l iquida$on of the
Group.
 

 

 
As at 31 March 2025, the Company has  an authorised and issued share capital  of 400,733,511
(2024: 400,733,511) equity shares  at par value of £ 0.000147 (2024: £ 0.000147) per share
amounting to £58,909 (2024: £58,909) in total .

 

 



 

 Reserves

 
Share premium represents  the amount received by the Group over and above the par value of
shares  issued. Any transac$on costs  associated with the issuing of shares  are deducted from
share premium, net of any related income tax benefi ts .
 

 

 
Foreign currency trans la$on reserve is  used to record the exchange differences  aris ing from the
trans lation of the financial  s tatements  of the foreign subs idiaries .
 

 

 

O ther reserve represents  the difference between the cons idera$on paid and the adjustment to net
assets  on change of control l ing interest, without change in control , other reserves  a lso includes
any costs  related with share op$ons granted and gain/losses  on re-measurement of financial
assets  measured at fa i r value through other comprehensive income.
 

 

 
Retained earnings  include al l  current and prior period results  as  disclosed in the consol idated
statement of comprehensive income less  dividend distribution.
 

 

 22  Share based payments

 Long Term Incentive Plan  

 
The number of performance-related awards  is  14 mi l l ion ordinary shares  (the "LTI P  Shares")
(represen$ng approximately 3.6 per cent of the Company's  i ssued share capital ). The grant date is
24 Apri l  2019.
 

 

 

The LTI P  Shares  were awarded to certain members  of the senior management team as  Nominal  Cost
Shares  and wi l l  vest in three tranches  subject to con$nued service with Group un$l  ves$ng and
mee$ng the fol lowing share price performance targets , plant load factor ("P LF") and term loan
repayments  of the Chennai  thermal  plant.
 

 

 

-     20% of the LTI P  Shares  shal l  vest upon mee$ng the target share price of 25.16p before the first
anniversary for the first tranche, i .e. 24 Apri l  2020, achievement of P LF during the period Apri l
2019 to March 2020 of at least 70% at the Chennai  thermal  plant and repayment of a l l  scheduled
term loans.
 

 

 

-     40% of the LTI P  Shares  shal l  vest upon mee$ng the target share price of 30.07p before the
second anniversary for the second tranche, i .e. 24 Apri l  2021, achievement of PLF during the period
Apri l  2020 to March 2021 of at least 70% at the Chennai  thermal  plant and repayment of a l l
scheduled term loans.
 

 

 

-     40% of the LTI P  Shares  shal l  vest upon mee$ng the target share price of 35.00p before the third
anniversary for the third tranche, i .e. 24 Apri l  2022, achievement of P LF of at least 70% at the
Chennai  thermal  plant during the period Apri l  2021 to March 2022 and repayment of a l l  scheduled
term loans.
 

 

 
The nominal  cost of performance share, i .e. upon the exercise of awards, individuals  wi l l  be
required to pay up 0.0147p per share to exercise their awards.
 

 

 

The share price performance metric wi l l  be deemed achieved i f the average share price over a
fiQeen day period exceeds the appl icable target price. I n the event that the share price or other
performance targets  do not meet the appl icable target, the number of ves$ng shares  would be
reduced pro-rata, for that par$cular year. However, no LTI P  Shares  wi l l  vest i f actual  performance
is  less  than 80 per cent of any of the performance targets  in any par$cular year.  The terms of the
LTI P  provide that the Company may elect to pay a  cash award of an equivalent value of the ves$ng
LTIP Shares.
 

 

 

None of the LTI P  Shares , once vested, can be sold un$l  the third anniversary of the award, unless
required to meet personal  taxa$on obl iga$ons in rela$on to the LTI P  award.The shares  have not
been issued because that was  the $me of COVI D lock downs and related disrup$ons including
Administra$ve and Logis$cs  issues, thus  delaying the process  of a l loca$on of shares. No
changes/revis ions  were made to LTIP during the reporting period and no shares  were issued during
the repor$ng period. The Carry forward shares  under LTI P  reserves  wi l l  be issued by the revised
timel ine of FY27.
 

 

 

 Move me nts  duri ng the  pe ri od
Expi re d/

LTIP
Outs ta ndi ng

La te s t
ve s ti ng

 

LTIP a s
a t

 

LTIP
gra nte d

01-Apr-
24

Gra nte d Ca nce l l e d Exe rci s e d 31-Ma r-25 da te  

Arvi nd
Gupta

24-Apr-
19

1,185,185 Ni l 0 Ni l 1,185,185 24-Apr-20  

Dmi tri
Ts ve tkov

24-Apr-
19

568,889 Ni l 0 Ni l 568,889 24-Apr-20  

Ava nti ka
Gupta

24-Apr-
19

284,445 Ni l 0 Ni l 284,445 24-Apr-20  

 

23 Borrowings  

    

The  borrowi ngs  compri s e  of the  fol l owi ng:  

Interest rate
(range %)

Final
maturity 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

 

Borrowi ngs  a t a morti s e d cos t 9.9-10.851 Ja n 2029 7,582,862 18,474,064
 

Non-Conve rti bl e  De be nture s  a t  



Non-Conve rti bl e  De be nture s  a t
a morti s e d cos t 9.85-12.75 Nov 2026 2,898,997 10,163,461

 

Total 10,481,859 28,637,525
 

1 Inte re s t ra te  ra nge  for Proje ct te rm l oa ns  a nd Worki ng Ca pi ta l     

The term loans, working capital  loans  and non-conver$ble debentures  taken by the Group are ful ly
secured by the property, plant, assets  under construc$on and other current assets  of subs idiaries
which have avai led such loans.
 

 

Term loans  contain certain covenants  stipulated by the faci l i ty providers  and primari ly require the
Group to maintain specified levels  of certain financial  metrics  and opera$ng results . As  of 31
March 2025, the Group has  met a l l  the relevant covenants .
 

 

The fa ir value of borrowings  at 31 March 2025 was £ 10,481,859 (2024: £ 28,637,525). The fa ir
values  have been calculated by discounting cash flows at prevai l ing interest rates .
 

 

The borrowings  are reconci led to the statement of financial  pos ition as  fol lows:
 

 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  

a. Current liabilities
 

Amounts  fa l l ing due within one
year 2,166,804 9,022,924

 

 

b. Non-current liabilities
 

Amounts  fa l l ing due after 1 year but not more than 5 years 8,315,055 19,614,601
 

  
Total    10,481,859 28,637,525

 

   
 

   
 

24 Trade and other payables
 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
 

a. Current
 

Trade payables 31,406,331 51,847,642
 

Creditors  for capital
goods 310,411 -

 

Bank Overdraft - -
 

Other payables - -
 

Total 31,716,742 51,847,642
 

 

b. Non-current
 

Other payables
 

     Provis ion for Gratuity 339,790 256,906
 

     Provis ion for Leave
Encashment 48,679 39,154

 

     Others (0) 518,413
 

Total 388,469 814,473
 

  

Trade payables  include credit avai led from banks  under leFers  of credit for payments  in US D to
suppl iers  for coal  purchased by the Group. O ther trade payables  are normal ly seFled on 45 days
terms credit.  The arrangements  are interest bearing and are payable within one year. W ith the
excep$on of certain other trade payables , a l l  amounts  are short term. Creditors  for capital  goods
are non-interest bearing and are usual ly seFled within a  year.  O ther payables  include accruals
for gratuity and other accruals  for expenses.

 

 

25 Current tax assets (net)  

Current tax assets  (net) cons ists  of Advance tax and Tax deducted at source net of provis ion for
income tax for the year, amounting to £ 654,736 (2024: £ 697,438).

 

 

26 Other Liabilities  

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  

a. Current - Other Liabilities  

Advance from Customers 215,855 381,886
 

Other Liabi l i ties 159,766 100,934
 

Total 375,621 482,820
 

Other Liabi l i ties  cons ists  of Statutory l iabi l i ties  of the Group.
 

 

b. Non-current - Other Liabilities
 

Other Liabi l i ties - 16,903
 

Total - 16,903
 

 



 

27 Related party
transactions

 

    

Where control  exists :  

Name of the party Nature of relationship  

Caromia Holdings
l imited

Subsidiary  

OPG Power Generation Private Limited Subsidiary  

Gita Power and Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary  

Powergen Resources  PTE Ltd Subsidiary  

Samriddhi  Surya Vidyut Private Limited Subsidiary  

 

Key Management
Personnel:

 

Name of the party Nature of relationship  

N Kumar Non-executive Chairman  

Avantika Gupta Chief Executive Officer  

Aji t Pratap Singh Chief Financial  Officer up to 20th March 2025
Non-executive Director
 

 

Jeremy Warner Al len Non-executive
Director, Deputy
Chairman

 

Mike
Grasby

Non-executive Director  

    

Related parties with whom the group had transactions during the period  

Name of the party Nature of relationship  

Powergen Resources  PTE Ltd Subsidiary  

Samriddhi  Bubna Relative of Key Management Personnel  

 

Summary of transactions with related parties  

Name of the party 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  

    

Remuneration to Samriddhi
Bubna - 52,854

 

 

 

Summary of balance with related parties  

Name of the party Nature of balance 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  

 

 

 

O utstanding balances  at the year-end are unsecured. Related party transac$on are on arms length
bas is . There have been no guarantees  provided or received for any related party receivables  or
payables . The assessment of impairment is  undertaken each financial  year through examining the
financial  pos ition of the related party and the market in which the related party operates .

 

 

28 Earnings per share  

Both the bas ic and di luted earnings  per share have been calculated us ing the profit aFributable to
shareholders  of the parent company as  the numerator (no adjustments  to profi t were necessary for
the year ended March 2025 or year ended March 2024).
 

 

The company has  issued LTI P  over ordinary shares  which could poten$al ly di lute bas ic earnings
per share in the future.

 

The weighted average number of shares  for the purposes  of di luted earnings  per share can be
reconci led to the weighted average number of ordinary shares  used in the calcula$on of bas ic
earnings  per share (for the group and the company) as  fol lows:

 

 

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  

Weighted average number of shares  used in bas ic earnings
per share 402,924,030 402,924,030

 

Shares  deemed to be issued for no cons ideration in respect
of share based payments - -

 

Weighted average number of shares used in diluted
earnings per share 402,924,030 402,924,030

 

   

29 Directors remuneration  

Name of directors 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  



Name of directors 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  

Aji t Pratap Singh 30,990 90,921
 

Avantika Gupta 111,236 115,317
 

Jeremy Warner Al len 45,000 43,972
 

N Kumar 45,000 45,000
 

Mike Grasby 45,000 45,000
 

Total 277,226 340,209
 

 

The above remunera$on is  in the nature of short-term employee benefits . As  the future l iabi l i ty for
gratuity and compensated absences  is  provided on actuaria l  bas is  for the companies  in the group,
the amount pertaining to the directors  i s  not individual ly ascertainable and therefore not included
above.

 

 

30 Business combination within the group without loss of control  

As per the original  s tructure of the group, two Cypriot subs idiaries  of O P GPV, namely Gita Energy
P rivate Limited ('GEP L') and Gita Holdings  P rivate Limited ('GH P L'), held the investments  in the
equity of the Group's  Special  P urpose Vehicles  (S PV) in I ndia. During the year ended 31 March
2013, the management decided to interpose an Indian holding Company, GPIPL in the structure and
warehouse the S PV investments  in GP I P L. Accordingly, the shareholders  of GEP L, GH P L and GP I P L
had entered into a  scheme of arrangement to effect the above restructuring of the group. As  part of
the regulatory requirements  in I ndia, the group had appl ied and obtained approval  from the High
court of Madras  on 28 O ctober 2011 subject to fulfilment of certain condi$ons including approval
of relevant regulatory authori$es, a l lotment of shares  etc. The scheme had been consummated
with effect from 25 January 2013 upon issue of shares  to the shareholders  of GEP L and GH P L,
namely C H L and the assets  and l iabi l i$es  of GEP L and GH P L have been taken over by GP I P L.
Consequent to the scheme of arrangement, the group also has  gained 100% economic interest over
GP I P L by vi rtue of an agreement entered into with the minori ty shareholders  of GP I P L dated 01
Apri l  2012.
 

 

The above arrangement has  been cons idered as  a  bus iness  combina$on involving companies
under the group s ince then and has  been accounted at the date that common control  was
establ ished us ing pool ing of interest method. The assets  and l iabi l i$es  transferred are recognised
at the carrying amounts  recognised previous ly in the Group control l ing shareholder's
consol idated financial  s tatements . The components  of equity of the acquired en$$es are added to
the same components  within Group equity. There was no excess  cons idera$on paid in this
transaction.
 

 

31 Commitments and contingencies  

    

Contingent liabilities  

Disputed income tax demands £ 455,328 (2024: £4,448,130).  

Future cash flows in respect of the above maFers  are determinable only on receipt of judgements  /
decis ions  pending at various  forums / authori ties .

 

 

Guarantees and Letter of credit  

The Group has  provided bank guarantees  and leFer of credits  (LC) to customers  and vendors  in the
normal  course of bus iness . The LC provided as  at 31 March 2025: £ 5,323,578 (2024: £ 7,489,725)
and Bank Guarantee (BG) as  at 31 March 2025: £ 4,001,158 (2024: £ 5,750,073). LC  are suppor$ng
accounts  payables  a lready recognised in statement of financial  pos i$on. There have been no
guarantees  provided or received for any related party receivables  or payables . BG are treated as
con$ngent l iabi l i$es  un$l  such $me i t becomes probable that the Company wi l l  be required to
make a payment under the guarantee.
 

 

32 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's  principal  financial  l iabi l i$es , comprises  of loans  and borrowings, trade and other
payables , and other current l iabi l i$es. The main purpose of these financial  l iabi l i$es  is  to ra ise
finance for the Group's  opera$ons. The Group has  loans  and receivables , trade and other
receivables , and cash and short-term deposits  that arise directly from i ts  opera$ons. The Group
also hold investments  des ignated financial  assets  measured at FVPL categories .
 
The Group is  exposed to market risk, credit risk and l iquidity risk.
 
The Group's  senior management oversees  the management of these risks . The Group's  senior
management advises  on financial  ri sks  and the appropriate financial  ri sk governance framework
for the Group.
 
The Board of Directors  reviews and agrees  pol icies  for managing each of these risks  which are
summarised below:

Market risk
Market risk i s  the risk that the fa ir values  of future cash flows of a  financial  instrument wi l l  fluctuate
because of changes  in market prices . Market prices  comprise three types  of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk, such as  equity risk. F inancial  instruments  affected by market risk
include loans  and borrowings, deposits , financial  assets  measured at FVPL.
 
The sens i$vity analyses  in the fol lowing sec$ons relate to the pos i$on as  at 31 March 2025 and 31
March 2024

The fol lowing assumptions  have been made in calculating the sens itivi ty analyses:
(i )  The sens i$vity of the statement of comprehensive income is  the effect of the assumed changes  in



(i )  The sens i$vity of the statement of comprehensive income is  the effect of the assumed changes  in
interest rates  on the net interest income for one year, based on the average rate of borrowings  held during
the year ended 31 March 2025, a l l  other variables  being held constant. These changes  are cons idered to
be reasonably poss ible based on observation of current market conditions.
 
Interest rate risk
I nterest rate risk i s  the risk that the fa ir value or future cash flows of a  financial  instrument wi l l  fluctuate
because of changes  in market interest rates . The Group's  exposure to the risk of changes  in market interest
rates  relates  primari ly to the Group's  long-term debt obl igations  with average interest rates .
 
At 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group had no interest rate derivatives .

The calcula$ons are based on a change in the average market interest rate for each period, and the
financial  instruments  held at each repor$ng date that are sens i$ve to changes  in interest rates . Al l  other
variables  are held constant. I f interest rates  increase or decrease by 100 bas is  points  with a l l  other
variables  being constant, the Group's  profit aQer tax for the year ended 31 March 2025 would decrease or
increase by £ 86,507 (2024: £ 236,288).

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk i s  the risk that the fa ir value or future cash flows of a  financial  instrument wi l l
fluctuate because of changes  in foreign exchange rate. The Group's  presenta$on currency is  the Great
Bri ta in £. A majori ty of our assets  are located in I ndia where the I ndian rupee is  the func$onal  currency
for our subs idiaries . Currency exposures  a lso exist in the nature of capital  expenditure and services
denominated in currencies  other than the Indian rupee.
 
The Group's  exposure to foreign currency arises  where a Group company holds  monetary assets  and
l iabi l i ties  denominated in a  currency di fferent to the functional  currency of that enti ty:

 As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Currency Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities
United
States
Dol lar (USD) - 26,983,493 - 55,492,762

Set out below is  the impact of a  10% change in the US dol lar on profit aris ing as  a  result of the revalua$on
of the Group's  foreign currency financial  instruments:
 

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Currency
Closing Rate
(INR/USD)

Effect of 10%
strengthening in USD

against INR - Translated to
GBP

Closing Rate
(INR/USD)

Effect of 10%
strengthening in
USD against INR -
Translated to GBP

United
States
Dol lar (USD) 85.55 2,091,413 83.38 4,395,119
 
The impact on total  equity is  the same as  the impact on net earnings  as  disclosed above.

Credit risk analysis
Credit risk i s  the risk that counterparty wi l l  not meet i ts  obl iga$ons under a  financial  instrument or
customer contract, leading to a  financial  loss . The Group is  exposed to credit risk from i ts  opera$ng
ac$vi$es  (primari ly for trade and other receivables) and from i ts  financing ac$vi$es, including short-
term deposits  with banks  and financial  insti tutions, and other financial  assets .
The Group has  exposure to credit risk from accounts  receivable balances  on sale of electrici ty. The
opera$ng en$$es of the group has  entered into power purchase agreements  with distribu$on companies
incorporated by the I ndian state government (TANGED CO ) to sel l  the electrici ty generated therefore the
group is  commiFed to sel l  power to these customers  and the poten$al  risk of default i s  cons idered low.
For other customers, the Group ensures  concentra$on of credit does  not s ignificantly impair the financial
assets  s ince the customers  to whom the exposure of credit i s  taken are wel l  establ ished and reputed
industries  engaged in their respec$ve field of bus iness . I t i s  Group pol icy to assess  the credit risk of new
customers  before entering contracts  and to obtain credit informa$on during the power purchase
agreement to highl ight poten$al  credit risks . The Group have establ ished a credit pol icy under which
customers  are analysed for credit worthiness  before power purchase agreement is  s igned. The Group's
review includes  external  ra$ngs, when avai lable, and in some cases  bank references. The credit
worthiness  of customers  to which the Group grants  credit in the normal  course of the bus iness  is
monitored regularly and incorporates  forward looking informa$on and data avai lable. The receivables
outstanding at the year end are reviewed $l l  the date of s igning the financial  s tatements  in terms of
recoveries  made and ascertain i f any credit risk has  increased for balance dues. Further, the macro
economic factors  and specific customer industry status  are a lso reviewed and i f required the search and
credit worthiness  reports , financial  s tatements  are evaluated. The credit risk for l iquid funds  is
cons idered negl igible, s ince the counterpar$es  are reputable banks  with high qual i ty external  credit
ratings .
 
To measure expected credit losses , trade and other receivables  have been grouped together based on
shared credit risk characteris$cs  and the days  past due. The Group determined that some trade
receivables  were credit impaired as  these were long past their due date and there was an uncertainty
about the recovery of such receivables . The expected loss  rates  are based on an ageing analys is
performed on the receivables  as  wel l  as  historical  loss  rates . The historical  loss  rates  are adjusted to
reflect current and forward looking information that would impact the abi l i ty of the customer to pay.
 
Trade and other receivables  are wriFen off when there is  no reasonable expecta$on of recovery.
I ndicators  that there is  no reasonable expecta$on of recovery include , amongst others , the fa i lure of the
debtor to engage in a  repayment plan, the debtor is  not opera$ng anymore and a fa i lure to make
contractual  payments  for a  period of greater than 180 days. 
 

Within Credit
Days past due  

More than 30 More than 60 More than



31-Mar-25
Within Credit

period
More than 30

days
More than 60

days
More than

180 days Total
Expected
general  loss
al lowance rate 0% 0% 0% 62.31%  
Gross  carrying
amount - Trade
Receivables  -
TANGEDCO 6,560,724 5,846,631 863,203 11,837,387 25,107,944
Gross  carrying
amount - Trade
Receivables  -
Others 2,283,256 478,773 159,591 935,165 3,856,784
General  loss
al lowance 7,958,537 7,958,537
Total Loss
allowance - - - 7,958,537 7,958,537
   

31-Mar-24
Within Credit

period

Days past due  
More than 30

days
More than 60

days
More than

180 days Total
Expected loss
rate 0% 0% 0% 108.68%  
Gross  carrying
amount - Trade
Receivables  -
TANGEDCO 7,665,256 2,555,085 1,846,436 4,203,879 16,270,657
Gross  carrying
amount - Trade
Receivables  -
Others 19,515,683 3,856,338 2,090,000 894,723 26,356,744
General  loss
al lowance - - - 5,541,380 5,541,380
Total Loss
allowance - - - 5,541,380 5,541,380
   
The clos ing loss  a l lowances  for trade receivables  as  at 31 March 2025 reconci les  to the opening loss
al lowances  as  fol lows:
 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Opening loss  a l lowance as  at 1 Apri l 5,541,380 10,005,333
Additional  ECL for the year net off reversal  in loss  a l lowance 2,417,157 (4,463,953)
Total 7,958,537 5,541,380
   
The Group's  management bel ieves  that a l l  the financial  assets , except as  men$oned above are not
impaired for each of the reporting dates  under review and are of good credit qual i ty.

Liquidity risk analysis
The Group's  main source of l iquidity i s  i ts  opera$ng bus inesses. The treasury department uses  regular
forecasts  of opera$onal  cash flow, investment and trading col lateral  requirements  to ensure that
sufficient l iquid cash balances  are avai lable to service on-going bus iness  requirements . The Group
manages  i ts  l iquidity needs by careful ly monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments  for long-term
financial  l iabi l i$es  as  wel l  as  cash ouRlows due in day-to-day bus iness . Liquidity needs are monitored in
various  $me bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week bas is , as  wel l  as  on the bas is  of a  rol l ing 90 day
projection. Long-term l iquidity needs for a  90 day and a 30 day lookout period are identi fied monthly.
 
The Group maintains  cash and marketable securi$es  to meet i ts  l iquidity requirements  for up to 60 day
periods. Funding for long-term l iquidity needs is  addi$onal ly secured by an adequate amount of
committed credit faci l i ties  and the abi l i ty to sel l  long-term financial  assets . 

The fol lowing is  an analys is  of the group contractual  undiscounted cash flows payable under financial
l iabi l i ties  at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2025 Current Non-Current

Total
 Within 12

months 1-5 years Later than 5 years
Borrowings 2,166,804 5,416,058 - 7,582,862
Non-Convertible Debentures - 2,898,997 - 2,898,997
Trade and other payables 31,716,742 388,469 - 32,105,211
Other l iabi l i ties 375,621 21,652,104 - 22,027,724
Other current l iabi l i ties - -
Total 34,259,167 30,355,628 - 64,614,795

As at 31 March 2024 Current Non-Current

Total 
Within 12

Months 1-5 Years Later than 5 years
Borrowings 9,022,924 9,451,140 - 18,474,064
Non-Convertible Debentures - 10,163,461 - 10,163,461
Trade and other payables 51,847,642 814,473 - 52,662,115
Other l iabi l i ties 482,820 20,674,775 - 21,157,596
Other current l iabi l i ties - - - -
Total 61,353,386 41,103,849 - 102,457,235

Capital management



Capital management
Capital  includes  equity aFributable to the equity holders  of the parent and debt less  cash and cash
equivalents .

The Group's  capital  management objectives  include, among others :
· Ensuring that i t maintains  a  strong credit ra$ng and healthy capital  ra$os in order to support i ts
bus iness  and maximise shareholder value
· Ensuring Group's  abi l i ty to meet both i ts  long-term and short-term capital  needs  as  a  going concern and
· P roviding an adequate return to shareholders  by pricing products  and services  commensurately with the
level  of risk.

The Group manages  i ts  capital  s tructure and makes  adjustments  to i t, in l ight of changes  in economic
condi$ons. To maintain or adjust the capital  s tructure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders , return capital  to shareholders  or i ssue new shares.
 
No changes  were made in the objectives , pol icies  or processes  during the year end 31 March 2025.

The Group maintains  a  mixture of cash and cash equivalents , long-term debt and short-term commiFed
faci l i$es  that are des igned to ensure the Group has  sufficient avai lable funds  for bus iness  requirements .
There are no imposed capital  requirements  on Group or enti ties , whether statutory or otherwise.

 
 

The Capital  for the reporting periods  under review is  summarised as  fol lows:
 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Total  equity 164,851,291 170,478,680
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (15,348,348) (11,714,256)
Capital 149,502,943 158,764,424

Total  equity 164,851,291 170,478,680
Add: Borrowings 10,481,859 28,637,525
Overall financing 175,333,150 199,116,205
Capital to overall financing ratio 0.85 0.80

33  Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and their fair values
Carrying amount  Fair value

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
·         Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  1 15,348,348 11,714,256 15,348,348 11,714,256
·         Re s tri cte d ca s h 1 4,199,979 10,112,669 4,199,979 10,112,669
·         Curre nt tra de  re ce i va bl e s  1 21,006,192 37,086,020 21,006,192 37,086,020
·         Othe r l ong-te rm a s s e ts 658,306 512,358 658,306 512,358
·         Othe r s hort-te rm a s s e ts 19,987,627 18,186,633 19,987,627 18,186,633
Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
·         Othe r s hort te rm a s s e ts  -
(Note  16 (a )) 3 5,858,860 9,893,198 5,858,860 9,893,198
Total 67,059,312 87,505,134  67,059,312 87,505,134
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Te rm l oa ns 2 7,582,862 18,474,064 7,582,862 18,474,064
LC Bi l l  di s counti ng & buye rs ' cre di t
fa ci l i ty 1 - - - -
Non-Conve rti bl e  De be nture s 2 2,898,997 10,163,461 2,898,997 10,163,461
Curre nt tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s  1 31,716,742 51,847,642 31,716,742 51,847,642
Provi s i on for pl e dge d de pos i ts - 16,903 - 16,903
Non-curre nt tra de  a nd othe r
pa ya bl e s  2 388,469 814,473 388,469 814,473
Total 42,587,070 81,316,542  42,587,070 81,316,542

     
The fa ir value of the financial  assets  and l iabi l i$es  are included at the price that would be received to sel l
an asset or paid to transfer a  l iabi l i ty (i .e. a  exi t price) in an ordinary transac$on between market
par$cipants  at the measurement date. The fol lowing methods and assump$ons were used to es$mate the
fair values.
1.  Cash and short-term deposits , trade receivables , trade payables , and other borrowings  l ike short-term
loans, current l iabi l i$es  approximate their carrying amounts  largely due to the short-term maturi$es  of
these instruments .
2.  The fa ir value of loans  from banks  and other financial  indebtedness , obl iga$ons under finance leases,
financial  l iabi l i$es  at fa i r value through profit or loss  as  wel l  as  other non-current financial  l iabi l i$es  is
es$mated by discoun$ng future cash flows us ing rates  currently avai lable for debt or s imi lar terms and
remaining maturi ties .
3.  Fair value of financial  assets  measured at F VP L held for trading purposes  are derived from quoted
market prices  in ac$ve markets . Fair value of financial  assets  measured at F VP L of unquoted equity
instruments  are derived from valua$on performed at the year end. Fair Valua$on of retained investments
in PS and BV is  on bas is  of the last transaction.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position
The fol lowing table provides  an analys is  of financial  instruments  that are measured subsequent to ini$al
recogni$on at fa i r value, grouped into Levels  1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fa ir value is
observable.

·    Level  1 fa i r value measurements  are those derived from quoted prices  (unadjusted) in ac$ve
markets  for identical  assets  or l iabi l i ties .

·    Level  2 fa i r value measurements  are those derived from inputs  other than quoted prices  included
within Level  1 that are observable for the asset or l iabi l i ty, ei ther directly (i .e. as  prices) or
indirectly (i .e. derived from prices).

·    Level  3 fa i r value measurements  are those derived from valua$on techniques  that include inputs
for the asset or l iabi l i ty that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).



Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
2025
Quoted securi ties 5,858,860 - - 5,858,860
Total 5,858,860 - - 5,858,860

2024
Quoted securi ties 9,893,198 - - 9,893,198
Total 9,893,198 - - 9,893,198

There were no transfers  between Level  1 and 2 in the period. I nvestments  in mutual  funds  are valued at
clos ing net asset value (NAV).
 
The Group's  finance team performs valua$ons of financial  i tems for financial  repor$ng purposes,
including Level  3 fa i r values. Valua$on techniques  are selected based on the characteris$cs  of each
instrument, with the overal l  objec$ve of maximis ing the use of market-based informa$on. The finance
team reports  directly to the Pres ident of Finance & Accounts .
 
Valua$on processes  and fa ir value changes  are discussed by the Board of Directors  at least every year, in
l ine with the Group's  reporting dates .

Approved by the Board of Directors  on 01 September 2025 and s igned on i ts  behal f by:  
 

N Kumar Ajit Pratap Singh
Non-Executive Chairman Non-Executive Director
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